
 
ACADEMIC SENATE MEETING 

AGENDA 
May 18, 2017 

3:00 p.m. – 4:30 p.m. 
L-201 

 
To conform to the open meeting act, the public may attend open sessions 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
2. OPENING COMMENTS FROM THE SENATE PRESIDENT 

 
3. OPEN COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

a. May 4, 2017 Academic Senate Meeting (attachment) 
 

5. REPORTS (5 minutes maximum) 
a. Distance Education & Technology Committee - Perry Jehlicka 

 
6. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

a. Annual Address - President Ed Knudson 
b. Presentation of eLumens Outcomes Management System - Dr. Glenn Haller 
c. Presidential Term Constitutional Change Direction (attachment) - Dr. Glenn Haller 
d. BP 6307 (attachment) 
e. AP 6307 (attachment) 
f. AVC Debt Management Policy & Implementing Procedures (attachment) 

 
7. ACTION ITEMS 

a. Second Executive Officer 
Dr. Jessica Harper (attachment) 

b. Bylaws - Election of Constitutional Referee - Dr. Glenn Haller 
c. AP&P Course and Program Approval Report (attachment) 
d. AP&P BUS201 - Dr. Darcy Wiewall (attachment) 
e. AP&P Distance Ed Form - Dr. Darcy Wiewall (attachment) 

 
8. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 

a. Committee Vacancies 
• Faculty Professional Development Committee - Fall 2017 - June 30, 2020 

Jane Bowers 
• Outcomes Committee - Fall 2017 - June 30, 2020 

Cynthia Lehman - Social & Behavioral Sciences 
Mary Rose Toll - Rhetoric & Literacy 
Tiesha Klundt - Adjunct 

• Program Review Committee Coordinator - July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2020 
Stacey Adams 

b. Annual Committee Reports (attachments) 
AP&P Committee Report - Dr. Darcy Wiewall 
Accreditation Committee Report - Mike Pesses 
Distance Education & Technology Committee Report - Perry Jehlicka 
Faculty Professional Development Committee Report - Kristine Oliveira 
Honors Committee Report - John Vento 
Outcomes Committee Report - Dr. Glenn Haller 
Program Review Report - Carol Eastin 
Tenure Review Committee Report - Dr. Liette Bohler 
 
 



 
c. Ranking 

• Ryan Anthony - Adjunct Assistant Professor 
• Nicholas Titiriga - Assistant Professor 

d. Faculty Restroom Reassignment - All-Gender Toilet Facilities (attachment) 
 

9. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
June 15-17, 2017 Faculty Leadership Institute Sacramento Sheraton Grand 
July 12- 15, 2017 Curriculum Institute Riverside Convention Center 

 
10. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

2017 ACADEMIC SENATE MEETINGS & COMMITTEE REPORTS 
February 16, 2017 
Honors Committee 
Program Review Committee 

March 2, 2017 
Distance Education & Technology Committee 
Faculty Professional Development Committee 
Academic Policies & Procedures Committee 

March 16, 2017 April 20, 2017 
Outcomes Committee Report - Dr. Glenn Haller 
Legislative Report - Dr. Glenn Haller 
Program Review Committee Report - Carol Eastin 

May 4, 2017 
Faculty Professional Development Committee 
Academic Policies & Procedures Committee 

May 18, 2017 **ANNUAL REPORTS AGENDIZED** 
Honors Committee 
Distance Education & Technology Committee 

 
 
AGENDA 
Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with 
disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with 
a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting should 
direct such request to the Academic Office, at (661) 722-6306 (Monday - Thursday weekdays between 
the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m.) at least 48 hours before the meeting, if possible. Public records 
related to agenda items for open session are available for public inspection 72 hours prior to each 
regular meeting at the Antelope Valley College Academic Senate Office, Library- Room L202, 3041 West 
Avenue K, Lancaster, California 93536. 

The order of Agenda Items may change as deemed appropriate by the Academic Senate President. 
 



Approved: Academic Senate Meeting of June 1, 2017 
 

 
ACADEMIC SENATE MEETING 

MINUTES 
May 18, 2017 

3:00 p.m. – 4:30 p.m. 
L-201 

 
To conform to the open meeting act, the public may attend open sessions 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

The Academic Senate meeting of Thursday, May 18, 2017 was called to order at 3:00 p.m. by Dr. 
Susan Lowry, Academic Senate Vice President. 

 
A motion was made by Larry Veres and seconded by Dr. Jason Bowen to change the 
agenda: 

• Move Discussion Item 5.a. Annual Address - President Knudson to Item 3.a. 
Open Comments from the Public 

• Mike Pesses will present the Accreditation Report during Open Comments 
from the Public 

• Action Items 7c AP&P Course and Program Approval Report and 7d AP&P BUS201 
to before Discussion Items, to accommodate Dr. Darcy Wiewall. 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 

2. OPENING COMMENTS FROM THE SENATE PRESIDENT 
• Dr. Gat is serving on a hiring committee; this is the last meeting Dr. Lowry will run the 

meeting. 
• Faculty Recognition Day went well. The beanbag toss was popular, but next year will be 

held at 4:00 p.m. with awards beginning at 5:30 p.m. The beanbag plaque was awarded to 
the Adams family. 

 
3. OPEN COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 

• Mike Pesses: Accreditation Coordinator presented the Accreditation Committee report - see 
attachment. 

 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

a. May 4, 2017 Academic Senate Meeting (attachment) 
A motion was made by Mr. Larry Veres and seconded by Ms. Susan Knapp to approve 
minutes of the May 4, 2017 Academic Senate meeting. 
Motion carried with one (1) abstention. 

 
5. REPORTS (5 minutes maximum) 

a. Distance Education & Technology Committee - Perry Jehlicka 
Item moved to June 1, 2017 Academic Senate meeting. 
 

b. Honors Committee 
John Vento presented the Honors Committee report - see attachment. He thanked 
Nancy Masters for her work on the Subject Area Awards/Honors Convocation project. 

 
6. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

a. Annual Address - President Ed Knudson 
President Knudson began presenting an annual address to the senate four years ago as a 
means to report what might occur over summer. Significant work will be conducted 
between now and Labor Day: work with facilities, pass the tentative budget, continued 



Approved: Academic Senate Meeting of June 1, 2017 
 

planning for the buildout of the Facilities Master Plan, spending $300 million in 
construction on the Lancaster campus. Four (4) building are in the design phase. The 10-
year project includes nine (9) buildings coming down; constructing ten. There will be 
sharing of offices, space and classrooms in the interim. Mr. Knudson encouraged anyone 
asked to participate in the design of their respective areas. 
 
The first building will be the Academic Commons, which will pull people out of the 
Learning Center. Academic Commons will begin construction in spring 2018. The Student 
Services building will come down early.  
 
Working on the purchase or lease of 20 acres due west of the campus to stage equipment 
and material for the buildout; five (5) acres are needed for equipment and material for the 
buildout.  
 
The Palmdale Regional Airport is nearly complete, to house the 8-week training program 
for Airframe Manufacturing. Cohorts are successful with students hired upon completion 
by Northrop, Lockheed, Boeing and NASA @$22 per hour. Moving to the new site will 
add evening courses, allowing the program to graduate 50 students per cohort instead of 25. 
 
The Palmdale campus (23rd St E & Palmdale Blvd) is on schedule for completion in early 
August. The move-in will take 2.5 - 3 weeks. For the fall semester Palmdale will hold a 
compressed 12-week schedule to begin on September 18. The project is completely paid 
for.  
 
The college has no outstanding debt; the General Fund will be available to fund other 
things. We are hiring 18 new faculty this spring - all tenure track; using SSSP and CTE 
workforce funds to stagger the new faculty into the budget. 
 
The budget for this year looks similar to last year. If COLA passes the legislature it will be 
approximately 1.56. We will be hiring classified staff - five (5) people to handle the bond 
funds and projects. The projects will last 10-12 years. 
 
Last year in the budget President Knudson moved money onto single lines for organizations 
and units. This was done so the organizations and units could determine how funds are 
allocated. The Senate is on a single line; therefore the Senate will determine how the money 
is allocated. The logic was explained at the time but the communication did not filter down. 
The Senate allocation was not reduced. 
 
Projected enrollment is flat for the next few years. We are not budgeting or expecting any 
growth. With the Palmdale center we hope to get great penetration from southeastern 
Antelope Valley, to include students currently attending College of the Canyons. All 
General Ed will be offered at Palmdale, including free bus passes for students. AVTA 
developed an express route between communities and both campuses. AVC applied for a 
grant for an electric bus to go between two campuses.  
 
The Palmdale campus will free-up space on the Lancaster site, allowing us to address 
waitlist issues - specifically for Science, English and Math. 
 
President Knudson will work with construction crews to participate in emergency drills. 
Evacuation plans will be adjusted as we go through phases. He noted LA County Sheriff 
conducts their active shooter training here, proving well-training during the incident last 
October 2016.   
 
President Knudson reminded senators of Commencement on June 2, to confer 2,582 
degrees and certificates. 
 
Dr. Lowry thanked President Knudson. 



Approved: Academic Senate Meeting of June 1, 2017 
 

 
b. Presentation of eLumens Outcomes Management System - Dr. Glenn Haller 

Dr. Glenn Haller gave a presentation of the eLumens Outcomes Management System, the 
program recommended to replace WEAVEonline. An Outcomes sub-committee explored 
five (5) options for replacement and unanimously selected the eLumens Outcomes 
Management System. Dr. Haller will work this summer to make the process less 
complicated and more seamless. 
 

c. Presidential Term Constitutional Change Direction (attachment) - Dr. Glenn Haller 
The Bylaws sub-committee was asked to consider a 2-year term for the Senate President 
seat - see attachment for three options. After rigorous discussion consensus was to explore 
Option 3 EVERYONE IS TWO YEARS WITH STAGGER. 

 
d. BP 6307 Debt Issuance and Management (attachment) 

Senators agreed counsel with a strong financial background was needed. Dr. Lowry will 
contact Ken Scott. Dr. Scott Lee will find someone through CFT. Senators will send 
suggestions to Dr. Lowry and Dr. Lee. The policy will be discussed at the June 1, 2017 
meeting. 
 

e. AP 6307 (attachment) 
 

f. AVC Debt Management Policy & Implementing Procedures (attachment) 
 

7. ACTION ITEMS 
a. Second Executive Officer 

Dr. Jessica Harper (attachment) 
A motion was made by Rosa Fuller and seconded by Diane Flores-Kagan to approve the 
appointment of Dr. Jessica Harper to the Second Executive Officer seat. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 

b. Bylaws - Election of Constitutional Referee - Dr. Glenn Haller 
The Constitutional Referee must be available in summer to oversee proposed agendas for 
out of session senate meetings. The position must come from someone within the senate 
(excluding the Senate Executives) who is familiar with the constitution and bylaws. Dr. 
Haller read the job description for the position. The vote requires 2/3’s support to pass. 
 
Dr. Lowry called for nominations from the floor. 
 
Harish Rao nominated Kathryn Mitchell; Kathryn refused the nomination. 
Dr. Ed Beyer nominated Dr. Glenn Haller. 
Motion carried with one (1) “no” vote. 
 

c. AP&P Course and Program Approval Report (attachment) – Dr. Darcy Wiewall 
A motion was made by Van Rider and seconded by Susan Knapp to approve the AP&P 
Course and Program Approval Report - see attachment. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 

d. AP&P BUS201 - Dr. Darcy Wiewall (attachment) 
A motion was made by Susan Knapp and seconded by Tamira Palmetto-DeSpain to 
approve the AP&P BUS201 course as presented - see attachment. 
Ms. DeSpain questioned whether BUS203 can be added. Dr. Wiewall directed Tamira to 
contact Stacey Adams. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
e. AP&P Distance Ed Form - Dr. Darcy Wiewall (attachment) – Item tabled until June 1, 2017 

meeting. 
 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=x9ePxyVCmKA&feature=youtu.be


Approved: Academic Senate Meeting of June 1, 2017 
 

8. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
a. Committee Vacancies 

• Faculty Professional Development Committee - Fall 2017 - June 30, 2020 
Jane Bowers 

• Outcomes Committee - Fall 2017 - June 30, 2020 
Cynthia Lehman - Social & Behavioral Sciences 
Mary Rose Toll - Rhetoric & Literacy 
Tiesha Klundt - Adjunct 

• Program Review Committee Coordinator - July 1, 2017 - June 30, 2020 
Stacey Adams 
 

The aforementioned appointments were affirmed. 
 

b. Annual Committee Reports (attachments) 
AP&P Committee Report - Dr. Darcy Wiewall 
Accreditation Committee Report - Mike Pesses 
Distance Education & Technology Committee Report - Perry Jehlicka 
Faculty Professional Development Committee Report - Kristine Oliveira 
Honors Committee Report - John Vento 
Outcomes Committee Report - Dr. Glenn Haller 
Program Review Report - Carol Eastin 
Tenure Review Committee Report - Dr. Liette Bohler 
 
See attached annual committee reports. 
 

c. Ranking 
• Ryan Anthony - Adjunct Assistant Professor 
• Nicholas Titiriga - Assistant Professor 

 
The aforementioned applicants were granted Academic Ranking as requested. 
 

d. Faculty Restroom Reassignment - All-Gender Toilet Facilities (attachment) 
AVC must provide all-gender facilities as per state law. Locks are being removed from staff 
restrooms; faculty stand in line with students. 

 
9. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

June 15-17, 2017 Faculty Leadership Institute Sacramento Sheraton Grand 
July 12- 15, 2017 Curriculum Institute Riverside Convention Center 

 
10. ADJOURNMENT 

The Academic Senate meeting of May 18, 2017 was adjourned at 4:36 p.m. by Dr. Susan Lowry, 
Academic Senate Vice President. 
 

2017 ACADEMIC SENATE MEETINGS & COMMITTEE REPORTS 
February 16, 2017 
Honors Committee 
Program Review Committee 

March 2, 2017 
Distance Education & Technology Committee 
Faculty Professional Development Committee 
Academic Policies & Procedures Committee 

March 16, 2017 April 20, 2017 
Outcomes Committee 
Legislative Report 
Program Review Committee 

May 4, 2017 
Faculty Professional Development Committee 
Academic Policies & Procedures Committee 

May 18, 2017 **ANNUAL REPORTS AGENDIZED** 
Honors Committee 
 

June 1, 2017 
Distance Education & Technology Committee 

 



Approved: Academic Senate Meeting of June 1, 2017 
 

 
 
AGENDA 
Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with 
disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with 
a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting should 
direct such request to the Academic Office, at (661) 722-6306 (Monday - Thursday weekdays between 
the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m.) at least 48 hours before the meeting, if possible. Public records 
related to agenda items for open session are available for public inspection 72 hours prior to each 
regular meeting at the Antelope Valley College Academic Senate Office, Library- Room L202, 3041 West 
Avenue K, Lancaster, California 93536. 

The order of Agenda Items may change as deemed appropriate by the Academic Senate President. 
 



Guests/Ex-Officio: Dr. Ed 
Beyer, Dr. Scott Lee, Dr. 
Darcy Wiewall, Mike 
Pesses, John Vento Y=Yes, 
N=No, A=Abstain, NP = Not 
Present, MF=Motion Failed, 
1=Motion, 2=Second

C
H

A
N

G
E

 A
G

E
N

D
A

4a
 5

/4
/1

6 
M

in
ut

es

7A
2E

O
-J

H
ar

pe
r

7B
B

L-
C

on
s 

R
ef

7C
A

P
P

 C
ou

rs
e 

R
ep

or
t

7D
 A

P
P

 B
U

S
20

1

7E
 D

E
 F

or
m

-T
A

B
LE

D

 May 18, 2017 Senate Present Proxy Y/N/A Y/N/A Y/N/A Y/N/A Y/N/A Y/N/A

Bowen, Dr. Jason X 2 X X X X X

Burrell, Carolyn X X X X X X X

Christopher, Violet X X X X X X X

Flores-Kagan, Diane X X X 2 X X X

Fuller, Rosa X X X 1 X X X

Gat, Dr. Irit ABSENT (SL) ** ** ** ** ** ** **

Ginosian, Dezdemona X X X X X X X

Haller, Dr. Glenn X X X X X X X

Halliday, Jack ABSENT Ty Mettler X ABSTAINED X X X X

Harper, Dr. Jessica X X X X X X X

Jaffe, Dr. Matthew X X X X X X X

Karlstein, Lisa X X X X X X X

Knapp, Susan X X 2 X X 2 1

Leighton, Jonet X X X X X X X

Lowry, Dr. Susan X ** ** ** ** ** ** **

Mitchell, Kathryn X X X X X X X

Motawakel, Rick X X X X X X X

Palmetto-DeSpain, Tamira X X X X X X 2

Rao, Harish X X X X X X X

Rezek, Terry ABSENT NONE NP NP NP NP NP NP NP

Rider, Van X X X X X 1 X

Shafer, Dr. Ken X X X X N X X

Snyder, Susan ABSENT BONNIE CURRY X X X X X X

Sundberg, Liz X X X X X X X

Veres, Larry X 1 1 X X X X

Dianna Williams, ASO Vice Pr X PRESENT X X X X X X



 
 
 
Accreditation Report to Academic Senate, May 18, 2017 
Reported by Mike Pesses 
 

• The transition from Tina McDermott to Mike Pesses has been a smooth one 
• Mike, Bonnie Suderman, and Tina first met to deconstruct the ACCJC’s 

recommendations for our 2020 midterm report. 
• Meetings were held in April with the groups necessary to enact changes. 

o Most work is already being done by committees, so we will primarily need to 
ensure it is documented well for the next report. 

• Mike, Bonnie, and Tina will be meeting May 31 to plan for work done Fall 2017 
o Further meetings will most likely be held in the Fall 2017 semester to ensure work 

towards fixing recommendations is still progressing. 
 
 



CONTITUTIONAL CHANGES 
 
OPTION ONE – PRESIDENT IS TWO YEARS WITH ONE YEAR AS PRESIDENT ELECT 
 
 
 
4.3 Composition of Senate 
 
4.3.1 The Senate will consist of:  
• President 
• Vice-President or President-Elect 
• First Executive Officer 
• Second Executive Officer 
• Division Representatives 
• Non-Division Area Representatives  
• Adjunct Representatives 
• Legislative Liaison 
• Ex-Officio Members 
 
4.4 Senate Positions 
 
4.4.1 The Senate Positions are:  
• President 
• Vice-President or President-Elect 
• First Executive Officer 
4.5 Executive Committee  
 
 
4.5.2 The composition of the Executive Committee shall be: 
• President 
• Vice-President or President-Elect 
• First Executive Officer  
• Second Executive Officer 
 
 
4.11 Terms of Office 
 
4.11.1 A “School Year” shall be defined as the period from the first day of classes of 
the Fall Semester until the day before the first day of classes of the following Fall 
Semester. 
 
4.11.2 The President-Elect, President, Executive Committee and Elected 
Representative’s terms of office shall commence on the first day of the School Year 
following election. 
 



4.11.3 With the exception of the President, The Vice President, First and Second 
Executive Officers’ Committee members’ terms shall be one year following election 
and shall end on the day before the first day of the next School Year. 
 
4.11.4 In the case of a President-Elect the term shall be one year before automatic 
advancement to The President’s at which time the term shall be three two 
years following election, with the exception of a President who has taken office in 
accordance with §107.0 ,whose term shall end on the day before the first day of the 
School Year following the elected term. 
 
 
104.0 Voting and Balloting 
 
104.3 Open Balloting 
 
104.3.1 Should Open Balloting be required by this Constitution, the voting 
shall be held using procedures in accordance with Bylaws §B101.1,  unless there is 
only one candidate for the position, at which time the President may use Regular 
Voting. 
 
 
107.0 Succession 
 
107.1 Presidential Succession 
 
107.1.1 In the event of resignation, death, recall or long-term absence of the 
President, the Vice-President or President-Elect will immediately assume the duties 
of the President and shall serve a term that ends the day before the first day of 
classes of the following Fall Semester. 
 
107.1.3 Should there be a need for a Presidential succession, the 
determination of election for the next President shall take place in accordance to the 
position assuming the Presidency. at a regular Senate meeting in accordance with 
Bylaws §B101.1 by Open Ballot in accordance with §104.3.  
 
107.1.3.1 If the position assuming the President via succession is the Vice-
President, the election for the next President shall take place at a regular Senate 
meeting in accordance with Bylaws §B101.1 by Open Ballot in accordance with §104.3.  
 
107.1.3.1.1 If the position assuming the President via succession is the Vice-
President, there will be no election for the President-Elect.  The President elected in 
accordance with §107.1.3.1 shall serve a two year term in accordance with §4.11.2. 
 
107.1.3.2 If the position assuming the President via succession is the President-
Elect, the President-Elect will fulfill the succession term and then continue as President 
through the full two year term 



 
107.1.4 Succession shall take place in accordance with Bylaws §B105.1. 
 
107.2 Executive Committee Succession 
 
107.2.1 In the event of resignation, death, Presidential succession or long-
term absence of a member of the Executive Committee, with the exception of 
President-Elect, the President shall immediately send a call to all Regular Faculty for 
nominees to fill the position for the remainder of the term.  
 
107.2.1.1 In the event of resignation, death, Presidential succession or long-term 
absence of President-Elect, the President shall immediately send a call to all Regular 
Faculty for nominees to fill the position of Vice President for the remainder of the term. 
 
107.2.2 The election shall take place by Open Ballot at the next Senate meeting 
no sooner than one week following the call. 
 
 
Article II - REPRESENTATION 
 
200.0 President 
 
200.1 The President must be a full-time, tenured member of the faculty. 
 
200.2 The President may take office in one of three ways: Assumption of duties 
following one year as President-Elect, succession, and election for second term. 
 
200.3 The President’s term shall be three two years following election, and shall 
commence on the first day of the School Year following election. 
 
200.3.1 A President who has taken office in accordance with §107.1 shall have 
their term begin immediately and it shall end the day before the first day of classes 
of the next Fall Semester. with the exception of the President-Elect, which will fulfill 
the succession term and then continue as President through the full two year term 
 
200.4 Should a sitting President decide to run for a consecutive term, they must 
submit their intention according to the timeline and manner set forth in Bylaws §xxxx. 
 
200.4.1 Upon reception of the President’s intent to run for a second consecutive 
term, the Executive Committee shall then send a call for all interested to apply (this 
needs to be changedxxxxx). 
 
200.4.2 If the President is elected for a second consecutive, the President-Elect’s 
position shall become “Vice President” and they shall not assume the Presidency at the 
end of that term. 
 



200.5 The President shall not be elected to more than two consecutive full three 
two year terms, and must wait at least the equivalent of one full three two-year term 
after that second term ends before being eligible to be placed on the ballot for the 
position. 
 
200.5.1 Upon waiting the proper time between consecutive terms, a person 
wishing to again run for President must do so by being elected as President-Elect and 
serve as such for one year before assuming the Presidency. 
 
200.6 The President shall not hold any other position on the Senate other than 
those duties as specified in Bylaws §B400.0. 
 
200.6 The President shall be elected at a regular Senate meeting in accordance with 
Bylaws §B100.1.1 in the final School Year of the current President’s term by Open 
Ballot in accordance with §104.3.  
 
200.7 In the event of the President leaving office during the elected term, 
succession will take place in accordance with §107.1. 
 
200.8 The President shall represent the Senate to the Board of Trustees as well as 
the College Coordinating Council and shall insure the communication of Senate 
policies and sentiments to appropriate parties, along with other duties as specified 
in Bylaws §B400.1. 
 
201.0 President-Elect 
 
201.1 President-Elect shall be elected at a regular Senate meeting in accordance with 
Bylaws §B100.1.2 by Open Ballot in accordance with §104.3, at the end of the 
President’s first year in office. 
 
201.2 The President-Elect must be eligible to be President in accordance with §200.1.  
 
201.3 The President-Elect shall automatically become President after one year. 
 
201.4 The President-Elect term shall be one year commencing on the first day of the 
School Year following election. 
 
201.5 There are no term limits for a President-Elect, except as those imposed by 
§200.4. 
 
201.6 The President-Elect shall not hold any other position on the Senate.  
 
201.7 In the event of the President-Elect leaving office during the elected term, 
succession will take place in accordance with §107.2.1.1. 
 
201.7 The President-Elect’s duties and responsibilities are specified in Bylaws §401.0. 



 
202.0 Vice-President 
 
202.1 The Vice-President shall be elected at a regular Senate meeting in accordance 
with Bylaws §B100.1.2 by Open Ballot in accordance with §104.3, in those years that 
the President-Elect’s term ends. 
 
202.2 The Vice-President must be eligible to be President in accordance with 
§200.1.  
 
202.3 The Vice-President term shall be one year commencing on the first day of the 
School Year following election. 
 
202.4 There are no term limits for a Vice-President. 
 
202.5 The Vice-President shall not hold any other position on the Senate.  
 
202.6 In the event of the Vice-President leaving office during the elected term, 
succession will take place in accordance with §107.2. 
 
202.7 The Vice-President’s duties and responsibilities are specified in Bylaws 
§401.0. 
 
203.0 First Executive Officer 
 
203.1 The First Executive Officer shall be elected at a regular Senate meeting in 
accordance with Bylaws §B100.1.2 by Open Ballot in accordance with §104.3. 
 
203.2 The First Executive Officer’s term shall be one year commencing on the first 
day of the School Year following election. 
 
203.3 There are no term limits for a First Executive Officer. 
 
203.4 The First Executive Officer shall not hold any other position on the Senate, 
with the exception of Legislative Liaison. 
 
203.5 In the event of the First Executive Officer leaving office during the elected 
term, succession will take place in accordance with §107.2. 
 
203.6 The First Executive Officer’s duties and responsibilities are specified in 
Bylaws §B402.0. 
 
204.0 Second Executive Officer 
 
204.1 The Second Executive Officer’s shall be elected at a regular Senate meeting in 
accordance with Bylaws §B100.1.2 by Open Ballot in accordance with §104.3. 



 
204.2 The Second Executive Officer’s term shall be one year commencing on the 
first day of the School Year following election. 
 
204.3 There are no term limits for a Second Executive Officer. 
 
204.4 The Second Executive Officer shall not hold any other position on the Senate, 
with the exception of Legislative Liaison. 
 
204.5 In the event of the Second Executive Officer leaving office during the elected 
term, succession will take place in accordance with §107.2. 
 
204.6 The Second Executive Officer’s duties and responsibilities are specified in 
Bylaws §B403.0. 
 
205.0 Division Representatives 
 
205.1 Each division shall select their Senate representatives according to the 
formula as specified in Bylaws §B300.0, and notify the Senate of those 
representatives in writing. 
 
205.2 Each Division Representative shall serve a two-year term. 
 
205.3 There are no term limits for a division representative. 
 
205.4 In the event a division has not selected a representative, that seat will remain 
vacant until that division makes an appointment. 
 
205.5 Upon a Representative’s third consecutive absence without a proxy present 
for a meeting of the Senate, the Senate President shall declare the seat vacant and 
notify the division or area faculty members. The division or area then has the option 
to choose a new Senate representative.  
 
205.5.1 On the third consecutive absence, the position may be declared vacant 
by the President for the determination of quorum. 
 
205.6 In the event of a representative leaving office during the elected term, 
succession will take place in accordance with §107.3. 
 
205.7 Should the need for Division representation cease, or the Senate by a two-
thirds Regular Vote choose to eliminate the representation, those Representatives’ 
positions will end on the day before the first day of the next School Year.  
 
206.0 Non-Division Area Representatives 
 



206.1 Should the faculty within a particular Area not be within a Division, and 
hence not eligible for representation under §204.0, the Senate, by a two-thirds 
Regular Vote may add an Area Representative. 
 
206.2 The area may select as many Representatives as determined by the Senate to 
represent that area on the Senate. 
 
206.3 Area Representatives must be eligible to be a Representative on the Senate in 
accordance with §4.1. 
 
206.4 In the event of a Representative leaving office during the elected term, 
succession will take place in accordance with §107.3. 
 
206.5 Should the need for Area representation cease, or the Senate by a two-thirds 
Regular Vote choose to eliminate the representation, those Representatives’ 
positions will end on the day before the first day of the next School Year.  
 
207.0 Adjunct Representatives 
 
207.1 Two Adjunct Representatives shall be elected by the entire adjunct faculty to 
serve on the Senate.   
 
207.2 Each Adjunct Representative shall have the same voting privileges as regular 
faculty Senators. 
 
207.3 Adjunct Representatives shall be elected by Special Voting in accordance 
with Bylaws §B101.3, with the top two vote recipients being elected. 
 
207.4 The adjuncts with the third and fourth largest number of votes shall be the 
proxy for the Adjunct Senate Representatives. 
 
207.5 Adjunct Representatives shall be elected to serve a two-year term so long as 
they maintain eligibility in accordance with Bylaws §B100.1.4. 
 
207.6 In the event of an Adjunct Representative leaving office or becoming 
ineligible in accordance with Bylaws §x during the elected term, succession will take 
place in accordance with §107.3. 
 
208.0 Ex-Officio Members 
 
208.1 Ex-Officio Members of the Senate shall include: 
• Elected president of recognized certificated employee organization 
• ASO student appointee  
• Committee Chairs, Faculty co-Chairs and Coordinators  
• The most recent past Senate President for one year after term has ended. 
 



208.2 No Ex-officio member shall be granted voting privileges unless allowed 
under the auspices of an elected position.  
 
209.0 Legislative Liaison 
 
209.1 The President shall appoint a Legislative Liaison for a two-year term. 
 
209.2 There are no term limits for a Legislative Liaison. 
 
209.3 The Legislative Liaison shall keep the Senate informed of matters before the 
state legislature and the statewide Academic Senate. 
 
209.4 The Legislative Liaison shall explain and interpret this Constitution when 
required by the Executive Committee or full Senate. 
 
209.5 The Legislative Liaison may also serve as an elected Representative, unless 
otherwise specifically prohibited, however the Liaison may not vote unless allowed 
under the auspices of the elected position. 
 
209.6 The Legislative Liaison’s duties are specified in Bylaws §B404.0. 
 
 
 



CONTITUTIONAL CHANGES 
 
OPTION TWO – NO OTHER CHANGES BUT PRESIDENT IS TWO YEARS 
 
4.11 Terms of Office 
 
4.11.4 The President’s term shall be three two years following election, with the 
exception of a President who has taken office in accordance with §107.0 whose term 
shall end on the day before the first day of the School Year following the elected 
term. 
 
 
Article II - REPRESENTATION 
 
200.0 President 
 
200.2 The President’s term shall be three two years following election, and shall 
commence on the first day of the School Year following election. 
 
200.3 The President shall not be elected to more than two consecutive full three 
two-year terms, and must wait at least the equivalent of one full three-year term 
after that second term ends before being eligible to be placed on the ballot for the 
position. 
 
 
OPTION THREE – EVERYONE IS TWO YEARS WITH STAGGER 
 
 
4.11 Terms of Office 
 
4.11.3 With the exception of the President, All Executive Committee members’ 
terms shall be one two years following election and shall end on the day before the 
first day of the next School Year. 
 
4.11.4 The President’s term shall be three two years following election, with the 
exception of a President who has taken office in accordance with §107.0 whose term 
shall end on the day before the first day of the School Year following the elected 
term. 
 
Article II - REPRESENTATION 
 
200.0 President 
 
200.2 The President’s term shall be three two years following election, and shall 
commence on the first day of the School Year following election. 
 



200.3 The President shall not be elected to more than two consecutive full three 
two-year terms, and must wait at least the equivalent of one full three-year term 
after that second term ends before being eligible to be placed on the ballot for the 
position. 
 
200.4 The President shall not hold any other position on the Senate other than 
those duties as specified in Bylaws §B400.0. 
 
200.5 The President shall be elected at a regular Senate meeting in accordance with 
Bylaws §B100.1.1 in the final School Year of the current President’s term in odd 
years by Open Ballot in accordance with §104.3.  
 
 
201.0 Vice-President 
 
201.1 The Vice-President shall be elected at a regular Senate meeting in accordance 
with Bylaws §B100.1.2 in even years by Open Ballot in accordance with §104.3. 
 
201.3 The Vice-President term shall be one two years commencing on the first day 
of the School Year following election. 
 
 
202.0 First Executive Officer 
 
202.1 The First Executive Officer shall be elected at a regular Senate meeting in 
accordance with Bylaws §B100.1.2 in odd years by Open Ballot in accordance with 
§104.3. 
 
202.2 The First Executive Officer’s term shall be one two years commencing on the 
first day of the School Year following election. 
 
 
203.0 Second Executive Officer 
 
203.1 The Second Executive Officer’s shall be elected at a regular Senate meeting in 
accordance with Bylaws §B100.1.2  in even years by Open Ballot in accordance with 
§104.3. 
 
203.2 The Second Executive Officer’s term shall be one two years commencing on 
the first day of the School Year following election. 
 
 



BP 6307 Debt Issuance and Management 

 
Reference:  

Government Code Section 8855 

 

The Superintendent/President delegates the debt management & issuance to the Executive Director 

of Business Services, Chief Business Official. The Executive Director of Business Services, Chief 

Business Official shall establish procedures to ensure District is professionally managing its debt and 

fulfills its annual debt issuance reporting requirements to the California Debt and Investment Advisory 

Commission. 

 

Procedures shall include: 

 The purpose for which the debt proceeds may be issued. 

 The types of debt that may be issued. 

 The relationship of the debt to, and integration with, the District’s capital improvement 

program or budget, if applicable. 

 Policy goals related to the District’s planning goals and objectives. 

 The internal control procedures that the District has implemented, or will implement, to ensure 

that the proceeds of the proposed debt issuance will be directed to the intended use. 

 

5/4/17  



AP 6307 Debt Issuance and Management 

 
Reference:  

Government Code Section 8855 

 

The Superintendent/President delegates the debt management & issuance to the Executive Director 

of Business Services, Chief Business Official. The Executive Director of Business Services, Chief 

Business Official shall establish procedures to ensure District is professionally managing its debt and 

fulfills its annual debt issuance reporting requirements to the California Debt and Investment Advisory 

Commission. 

 

Article I 
 

Purpose and Goals 

This Policy provides a framework for debt management and capital planning by the District.  

 

This Policy has been developed to meet the following goals: 

(1) Identifying the purposes for which the debt proceeds may be used. 

(2) Identifying the types of debt that may be issued. 

(3) Describing the relationship of the debt to, and integration with, the District’s capital 

improvement program. 

(4) Establishing policy goals related to the District’s planning goals and objectives. 

(5) Implementing internal control procedures to ensure that the proceeds of the proposed 

debt issuance will be directed to the intended use upon completion of the issuance. 

 

Article II 
 

Purposes for Which Debt Proceeds May be Used 

 
Section 2.01. Authority and Purposes of the Issuance of Debt 

 

The laws of the State of California (the “State”) authorize the District to incur debt to make lease 

payments, contract debt, borrow money, and issue bonds for school improvement projects.  The 

District is authorized to contract debt to acquire, construct, reconstruct, rehabilitate, replace, improve, 

extend, enlarge, and equip such projects; to refund existing debt; or to provide for cash flow needs. 

Section 2.02. State Law 

Section 18 of Article XVI of the State Constitution contains the “debt limitation” formula applicable to 

the District. 

There are a number of State laws that govern the issuance of general obligation bonds (“GO Bonds”) 

by community college districts.  Sections 1(b)(2) (Proposition 46) and 1(b)(3) of Article XIII A 

(Proposition 39) of the State Constitution allow the District to issue GO Bonds.  The statutory authority 

for issuing GO Bonds is contained in Education Code Section 15000 et seq. Additional provisions 

applicable only to Proposition 39 GO Bonds are contained in Education Code Section 15264 et seq.  

An alternative procedure for issuing GO Bonds is also available in Government Code Section 53506 

et seq. 



The statutory authority for issuing Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes (“TRANs”) is contained in 

Government Code Section 53850 et seq.  Authority for lease financings is found in Education Code 

Section 17455 et seq. and additional authority is contained in Education Code Sections 17400 et 

seq., 17430 et seq. and 17450 et seq.  The District may also issue Mello-Roos bonds pursuant to 

Government Code Section 53311 et seq. 

Section 2.03. Debt Issued to Finance Operating Costs 

The District may deem it necessary to finance cash flow requirements under certain conditions. Such 

cash flow borrowing must be payable from taxes, income, revenue, cash receipts and other moneys 

attributable to the fiscal year in which the debt is issued. 

General operating costs include, but are not limited to, those items normally funded in the District’s 

annual operating budget. 

The District’s Superintendent/President, or Executive Director of Business Services, Chief Business 

Official (“CBO”), will review potential financing methods to determine which method is most prudent 

for the District. Potential financing sources include tax and revenue anticipation notes, temporary 

borrowing from the Los Angeles County Treasurer and Tax Collector, and internal temporary interfund 

borrowing.  

Article III 
 

Types of Debt That May be Issued 

Section 3.01. Types of Debt Authorized to be Issued 

A. Short-Term: The District may issue fixed-rate and/or variable rate short-term debt, 

which may include TRANs, when such instruments allow the District to meet its cash flow 

requirements. The District may also issue bond anticipation notes (“BANs”) to provide interim financing 

for bond projects that will ultimately be paid from GO Bonds.   

B. Long-Term: Debt issues may be used to finance essential capital facilities, projects and 

certain equipment where it is appropriate to spread the cost of the projects over more than one budget 

year. Long-term debt should not be used to fund District operations. 

Long term debt in the form of GO Bonds may be issued under Article XIII A of the State 

Constitution, either under Proposition 46, which requires approval by at least a two-thirds (66.67%) 

majority of voters, or Proposition 39, which requires approval by at least 55% of voters, subject to 

certain accountability requirements and additional restrictions.   

The District may also enter into long-term leases and/or COPs for public facilities, property, 

and equipment.  

C. Lease Financing: Lease-purchase obligations are a routine and appropriate means of 

financing capital equipment and certain capital facilities.  However, lease obligations may impact on 

budget flexibility.   

D. Use of General Obligation Bonds:  A significant portion of the District’s capital projects 

are projected to be funded by GO Bond proceeds.  Projects financed by the GO Bonds will be 

determined by the constraints of applicable law and the project list approved by voters. 



 

Article IV 

 

Relationship of Debt to and Integration with 

District’s Capital Improvement Program or Budget 

Section 4.01. Impact on Operating Budget and District Debt Burden 

In evaluating financing options for capital projects, both short and long-term debt amortization will be 

evaluated when considering a debt issuance, along with the potential impact of debt service, and 

additional costs associated with new projects on the operating budget of the District.  The cost of debt 

issued for major capital repairs or replacements may be judged against the potential cost of delaying 

such repairs. 

Section 4.02. Capital Improvement Program 

The CBO and the facilities staff have responsibility for the planning and management of the District’s 

capital improvement program subject to review and approval by the Board of Trustees.  Staff will, as 

appropriate, supplement and revise any applicable Facilities Master Plan in keeping with the District’s 

current needs for the acquisition, development and/or improvement of District’s real estate and 

facilities.  Such plans may include a summary of the estimated cost of each project, schedules for the 

projects, the expected quarterly cash requirements, and annual appropriations, in order for the 

projects to be completed.   

Section 4.03. Refunding and Restructuring Policy 

A. Considerations for Refunding.  

1. District’s Best Interest.  Whenever deemed to be in the best interest of the 

District, the District shall consider refunding or restructuring outstanding debt if it will be financially 

advantageous or beneficial for debt repayment and/or structuring flexibility.  

2. Net Present Value Analysis. The CBO shall review a net present value analysis 

of any proposed refunding in order to make a determination regarding the cost-effectiveness of the 

proposed refunding.   

3. Maximization of Expected Net Savings.  Another consideration in deciding 

which debt to refinance and the timing of the refinancing shall be maximization of the District’s 

expected net savings over the life of the bonds. 

 

4. Comply with Existing Legal Requirements.  The refunding of any existing debt 

shall comply with all applicable State and Federal laws governing such issuance. 

Article V 

 

Policy Goals Related to District’s Planning Goals and Objectives 

In following this Policy, the District shall pursue the following goals: 



1. The District shall strive to fund capital improvements from voter-approved GO 

Bond issues to preserve the availability of its General Fund for District operating purposes and other 

purposes that cannot be funded by such bond issues. 

2. The District shall endeavor to attain the best possible credit rating for each 

debt issue in order to reduce interest costs, within the context of preserving financial flexibility and 

meeting capital funding requirements. 

3. The District shall take all practical precautions and proactive measures to 

avoid any financial decision that will negatively impact current credit ratings on existing or future debt 

issues. 

4. The District shall, with respect to GO Bonds, remain mindful of its statutory 

debt limit in relation to assessed value growth within the school district and the tax burden needed to 

meet long-term capital requirements. 

5. The District shall consider market conditions and District cash flows when 

timing the issuance of debt. 

6. The District shall determine the amortization (maturity) schedule which will fit 

best within the overall debt structure of the District at the time the new debt is issued. 

7. The District shall match the term of the issue to the useful lives of assets 

funded by that issue whenever practicable and economic, while considering repair and replacement 

costs of those assets to be incurred in future. 

8. The District shall, when planning for the issuance of new debt, consider the 

impact of such new debt on overlapping debt of local, state and other governments that overlap with 

the District. 

9. The District shall, when issuing debt, assess financial alternatives to include 

new and innovative financing approaches, including whenever feasible, categorical grants, revolving 

loans or other State/federal aid, so as to minimize the encroachment on the District’s General Fund. 

10. The District shall, when planning for the sizing and timing of debt issuance, 

consider its ability to expend the funds obtained in a timely, efficient and economical manner. 

 

Article VI 
 

Internal Control Procedures for Issuance of Debt 

 to Ensure Intended Use of Proceeds 

Section 6.01. Structure of Debt Issues 

A. Maturity of Debt: The duration of a debt issue shall be consistent, to the extent 

possible, with the economic or useful life of the improvement or asset that the issue is financing. 

Accordingly, the average life of the financing shall not exceed 120% of the average life of the assets 

being financed. In addition, the District shall consider the overall impact of the current and future debt 

burden of the financing when determining the duration of the debt issue. 



B. Debt Structure: 

1. GO Bonds: 

a. New Money Bond Issuances:  For new money bond issuances, the 

District shall size the bond issuance consistent with the “spend-down” requirements of the Internal 

Revenue Code and within any limits approved by the District’s voters.  To the extent possible, the 

District will also consider credit issues, market factors (e.g. bank qualification) and tax law when sizing 

the District’s bond issuance. 

b. Refunding Bond Issuances:  The sizing of refunding bonds will be 

determined by the amount of money that will be required to cover the principal of, accrued interest (if 

any) on, and redemption premium for the bonds to be defeased on the call date and to cover 

appropriate financing costs. 

c. Maximum Maturity:  All bonds issued by the District shall mature within 

the limits set forth in applicable provisions of the Education Code or the Government Code. The final 

maturity of bonds will also be limited to the average useful life of the assets financed or as otherwise 

required by tax law.   

2. Lease-Purchase Obligations: The final maturity of equipment or real property 

lease obligations will be limited to the useful life of the assets to be financed.   

C. Debt Service Structure: The District shall design the financing schedule and repayment 

of debt so as to take best advantage of market conditions, provide flexibility, and, as practical, to 

recapture or maximize its debt capacity for future use.  

Section 6.02. Use of Proceeds 

The District shall be vigilant in using bond proceeds in accordance with the stated purposes at the 

time such debt was incurred.  In furtherance of the policy, and in connection with the issuance of all 

GO Bonds: 

 

1. As required by Government Code Section 53410, the District shall only use GO 

Bond proceeds for the purposes approved by the District’s voters; and 

2. The CBO shall have the responsibility, no less often than annually, to provide 

to the District’s Board of Trustees a written report which shall contain at least the following information: 

(i) The amount of the debt proceeds received and expended during the 

applicable reporting period; and 

(ii) The status of the acquisition, construction or financing of the school 

facility projects, as identified in any applicable bond measure, with the 

proceeds of the debt. 

These reports may be combined with other periodic reports which include the same information, 

including but not limited to, periodic reports made to the California Debt and Investment Advisory 

Commission, or continuing disclosure reports or other reports made in connection with the debt.  These 

requirements shall apply only until the earliest of the following: (i) all the debt is redeemed or defeased, 

but if the debt is refunded, such provisions shall apply until all such refunding bonds are redeemed or 

defeased, or (ii) all proceeds of the debt, or any investment earnings thereon, are fully expended. 



3. The District shall post on the District website the Annual Report of the District’s 

Independent Bond Oversight Committee which has been given the responsibility to review the 

expenditure of GO Bond proceeds to assure the community that all GO Bond funds have been used 

for the construction, renovation, repair, furnishing and equipping of school facilities, and not used for 

teacher or administrator salaries or other operating expenses. 

4. The District shall hire an independent auditor to perform an annual 

independent financial and performance audit of the expenditure of GO Bond proceeds, and to post 

such audits on the District website. 

 

 

5/4/17  



 

 

Antelope Valley Community District 

Business Services 
 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY & 

IMPLEMENTING PROCEDURES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared By: 

 

Executive Director of Business 

Services/Chief Business Officer 
 

May 2017 
 



 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY & IMPLEMENTING PROCEDURES 
 

Index 

Background ..................................................................................................................................... 3 

Article I. Purpose and Goals ................................................................................................ 4 

Article II. Authorization......................................................................................................... 5 

Section 2.01 Authority and Purposes of the Issuance of Debt ....................................... 5 

Section 2.02 Types of Debt Authorized to be Issued ...................................................... 5 

Section 2.03 State Law ...................................................................................................... 7 

Section 2.04 Annual Review ............................................................................................. 8 

Article III. Structural Features, Legal and Credit Concerns............................................... 8 

Section 3.01 Structure of Debt Issues .............................................................................. 8 

Section 3.02 Sale of Securities .......................................................................................... 9 

Section 3.03 Markets ....................................................................................................... 10 

Section 3.04 Credit Enhancements and Derivatives ..................................................... 10 

Section 3.05 Impact on Operating Budget and District Debt Burden ........................ 10 

Section 3.06 Debt Limitation .......................................................................................... 10 

Section 3.07 Debt Issued to Finance Operating Costs .................................................. 10 

Section 3.08 Credit Rating Methodologies & Tracking of District’s Performance Scores . 11  

Article IV. Related Issues ...................................................................................................... 14 

Section 4.01 Capital Improvement Program ................................................................ 14 

Section 4.02 Reporting of Debt ....................................................................................... 14 

Section 4.03 Financial Disclosure ................................................................................... 15 

Section 4.04 Review of Financing Proposals ................................................................. 15 

Section 4.05 Establishing Financing Priorities ............................................................. 15 

Section 4.06 Rating Agency and Credit Enhancer Relations ...................................... 15 

Section 4.07 Investment Community Relations ............................................................ 16 

Section 4.08 Refunding and Restructuring Policy ........................................................ 16 

Section 4.09 Investment of Borrowed Proceeds ............................................................ 16 

Section 4.10 Federal Arbitrage Rebate Requirement .................................................. 17 

Section 4.11 Transaction Records .................................................................................. 17 

Section 4.12 Financing Team Members......................................................................... 17 

Section 4.13 Special Situations ....................................................................................... 20 

 

  Appendix A   Debt Issuance & Management Policy ......................................................  24 

Appendix B AVC Long-Term Debt - Compliance Procedures ....................................30 

Appendix C AVC Continuing Disclosure Procedures ..................................................44 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 3 of 50 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY                                                                                   May 2017 

The policies set forth in this Debt Management Policy (the “Policy”) have been developed to 

provide guidelines for the issuance of general obligation bonds, certificates of participation 

(“COPs”) and other forms of indebtedness by the Antelope Valley Community College District 

(the “District”). While the issuance of debt can be an appropriate method of financing capital  

projects, careful and consistent monitoring of such debt issuance is required to preserve the 

District’s credit strength and budget and financial flexibility. These guidelines will serve the 

District in determining the appropriate uses for debt financing and debt structures as well as 

establishing prudent debt management goals. 
 

Background 

The District has good credit ratings of any major urban community college school district in the 

nation. The District’s Lease Revenue Bonds are rated A1 by Moody’s Investors Service and AA 

by Standard & Poor’s Corporation. The District’s COPs ratings are A1 (Moody’s) and A+ 

(Standard & Poor’s). These good credit ratings reduce the interest costs paid by the District on the 

amounts borrowed. Lower interest costs result in taxes paid to service debt on the District’s general 

obligation bonds and a reduced burden on the District’s operating funds for non-general obligation 

debt. These debt management policies are intended to assist in maintaining the District’s high 

credit ratings so that access to borrowed funds is provided at the lowest possible interest rates. 

Additionally, these policies are intended to set forth selection criteria for certain financial 

consultants and attorneys which will ensure a fair and open selection process, provide opportunities 

for all firms (including small business enterprises) to participate in District contracts, and result in 

the selection of the best qualified partners. The District faces continuing capital infrastructure and 

cash requirements. In particular, the District completed a comprehensive educational master plan 

and facilities master plan that identified the need construct facilities that replace 50 + year old 

facilities and expand capacity to support growing industry and community needs.  The costs of 

these requirements will be met, in large part, through the issuance of various types of debt 

instruments and other long-term financial obligations. Under “Measure AV”, adopted by the voters 

in November 2016, The District has general obligation bond authorization from an election of the 

registered voters of the District held on November 8, 2016 (the “Measure AV”).  At the Measure 

AV Election, almost 67% of the persons voting on the proposition voted to authorize the issuance 

and sale of not to exceed $350,000,000 principal amount of general obligation bonds to finance 

the acquisition, construction and modernization of certain properties and District facilities, as more 

fully described in a Project List submitted to the voters at the Measure AV (the “Measure AV 

Project List”).  G.O. Bonds of the District authorized by the Measure AV shall only be issued to 

finance projects included on the Measure AV Project List and which comply with State law and 

applicable provisions of the Tax Code. The ballot text included upgrades in math, engineering, 

aerospace/advanced manufacturing classrooms and labs, improve class availability and safety, 

update technology, repair, construct, acquire facilities, sites and equipment to maintain quality, 

affordable education for local students and returning veterans, and prepare students for jobs and 

transfer to four-year universities. Prior to Measure AV, the District had seen an increase in its 

levels of debt and other obligations and the need to anticipate future issuance of debt obligations. 
 

With these additional debt issuances, the effects of decisions regarding type of issue, method of 

sale, and payment structure become ever more critical to the District’s fiscal health.  The District 

plans to defease existing debt instruments with Measure AV proceeds, thus freeing up available 

funding in the general unrestricted fund.  An essential component of Measure AV is that $35 

million is to be endowed in accordance with Education Code 15146, which prohibits the proceeds 

from the sale of bonds from being withdrawn by the District for investment outside of county  



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 4 of 50 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY                                                                                   May 2017 

treasury. The $35 million is to remain in the county treasury indefinitely with interest earnings to 

be reinvested into small capital projects of the District on an on-going basis.  The $35 million 

principle amount shall not be withdrawn for any purpose, except in the case of disaster 

preparedness recovery or fiscal insolvency.  The goal is to assist in bridging the gap between being 

reliant on state scheduled maintenance funding that can dissolve during times of economic turmoil. 

The ongoing interest earnings will reduce reliance on state funds and ensure that capital facilities 

can be adequately maintained in the long-term.  To help ensure the District’s creditworthiness, an 

established policy of managing the District’s debt is essential. To this end, the Board of Trustees 

of the District (the “Board”) recognizes this Policy to be financially prudent and in the District’s 

best economic interest. In addition, the District’s practices with respect to monitoring its 

outstanding debt issues for compliance with all Internal Revenue Service requirements and other 

transaction requirements are set forth in Appendix A to this Policy. 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 5 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY                                                                                   May 2017 
 

Article I. Purpose and Goals 
 

The purpose of the Policy is to provide a functional tool for debt management and capital planning, 

as well as to enhance the District’s ability to manage its general obligation bond debt, tax and 

revenue anticipation notes, and lease financings in a conservative and prudent manner. In 

following this Policy, the District shall pursue the following goals: 
 

 The District shall strive to fund capital improvements from referendum-approved general 
obligation bond issues to preserve the availability of its General Fund for District operating 

purposes and other purposes that cannot be funded by such bond issues. 
 

 The District shall endeavor to attain the best possible credit rating for each debt issue in order 
to reduce interest costs, within the context of preserving financial flexibility and meeting 

capital funding requirements. 
 

 The District shall take all practical precautions and proactive measures to avoid any financial 

decision that will negatively impact current credit ratings on existing or future debt issues. 
 

 The District shall remain mindful of its statutory debt limit in relation to assessed value growth 

within the school district and the tax burden needed to meet long-term capital requirements. 
 

 The District shall consider market conditions and District cash flows when timing issuance of 

debt. 
 

 The District shall determine the amortization (maturity) schedule which will best fit with the 

overall debt structure of the District at the time the new debt is issued. 
 

 The District shall match the term of the issue to the useful lives of assets whenever practicable 
and economic, while considering repair and replacement costs of those assets to be incurred in 

future. 
 

 The District shall, when planning for the issuance of new debt, consider the impact of new debt 

on overlapping debt of local, state and other governments that overlap with the District. 
 

 The District shall, when issuing debt, assess financial alternatives to include new and innovative 

financing approaches, including whenever feasible categorical grants, revolving loans or other 

State/federal aid, so as to minimize the encroachment on the District’s General Fund. 
 

 The District shall, when planning for the sizing and timing of debt issuance, consider its ability 

to expend the funds obtained in a timely, efficient and economical manner. 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6 of 50 

 

 

 

  DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY                                                                                   May 2017 

The District shall ensure that local and emerging businesses will be considered for and used in 

lead and other roles in the financing team when appropriate. The key financial management tools 

and goals that are intrinsic to the Policy include: 
 

A. Reserve Policy: The District recognizes the importance of emergency reserves, including 

liquidity in the General Fund, that can provide a financial cushion in years of poor revenue 

receipts. A reserve fund policy has been adopted by the Board as part of its Budget and 

Finance Policy. 

B.  

C. Capital Financing Plan: A 20-year capital financing plan has been prepared by the Chief 

Business Officer and presented to the Board of Trustees. 

 

D. Annual Debt Report: The Chief Business Officer will annually prepare for and submit to 

the Superintendent and the Board of Trustees a Debt Report as further described under 

Section 4.02 herein.  This annual report shall also be submitted to the California Debt and 

Investment Advisory Committee (“CDIAC”) on or after January 21, 2017, which shall 

cover reporting period from Jul 1 to June 30, inclusive, to CDIAC no later than seven 

months after the end of such reporting period in a method approved by CDIAC and which 

complies with Section 8855 of the Government Code of the State.  
 

Article II. Authorization 
 

Section 2.01 Authority and Purposes of the Issuance of Debt 
 

The laws of the State of California authorize the issuance of debt by the District, and confer upon 

it the power and authority to make lease payments, contract debt, borrow money, and issue bonds 

for public improvement projects. Under these provisions, the District may contract debt to pay for 

the cost of acquiring, constructing, reconstructing, rehabilitating, replacing, improving, extending, 

enlarging, and equipping such projects; to refund existing debt; or to provide for cash flow needs. 
 

Section 2.02 Types of Debt Authorized to be Issued 
 

A. Short-Term: The District may issue fixed-rate and/or variable rate short-term debt, which 

may include tax and revenue anticipation notes (“TRANs”), when such instruments allow 

the District to meet its cash flow requirements. However, the District’s general objective is 

to manage its cash position in a manner so that internally generated cash flow is sufficient 

to meet expenditures. The District may also issue commercial paper in the context of 

funding shorter-term acquisitions, such as equipment, or interim funding for capital costs 

that will ultimately be replaced with longer-term COPs. The District may also participate 

in an annual pooled financing of delinquent property taxes to the extent that the Chief 

Business Officer determines such financing produces significant benefit to the District. The 

District may also issue bond anticipation notes (“BANs”) to provide interim financing for 

bond projects that will ultimately be paid from general obligation bonds. 

 

B. Long-Term: Debt issues may be used to finance essential capital facilities, projects and 

certain equipment where it is appropriate to spread the cost of the projects over more than 

one budget year. In so doing, the District recognizes that future taxpayers who will benefit 

from the investment will pay a share of its cost. Projects which are not appropriate 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY                                                                                  May 2017 

for spreading costs over future years will not be financed with long-term debt. Long-term 

debt will not, under any circumstances, be used to fund District operations. 

 

The District may issue long-term debt which includes, but is not limited to, general 

obligation bonds (“GO Bonds”). GO Bonds may be issued under Article XIII A of the State 

Constitution, either under Section 1(b)(2) which requires at least a two-thirds majority or 

Section 1(b)(3) (“Proposition 39”) which requires approval by at least 55% of voters, 

subject to additional restrictions. 

 

The District may also enter into long-term leases and/or COPs for public facilities, 

property, and equipment. In the event that lease revenue bond (“LRB”) financing costs  are 

lower than COPs financing costs, the District may consider using an LRB structure for 

financing public facilities, property, and equipment. The District may issue COPs or LRBs 

in variable rate mode as long as the requirements in Section 3.08A hereof are met. 

 

C. Equipment Financing: Lease obligations are a routine and appropriate means of financing 

capital equipment. However, lease obligations also have the greatest impact on budget 

flexibility. Therefore, efforts will be made to fund capital equipment with pay-as-you-go 

financing where feasible, and only the highest priority equipment purchases will be funded 

with lease obligations. With the exception of leases undertaken through the District’s 

standard procurement process, all equipment with a useful life of less than six years shall 

be funded on a pay-as-you-go basis unless the following conditions are met: 

 

i. In connection with the proposed District budget, the Superintendent makes the 

finding that there is an “economic necessity” based on a significant economic 

downturn, earthquake or other natural disaster and there are no other viable sources 

of funds to fund the equipment purchase. 

 

ii. The Board concurs with the Superintendent’s finding in the adoption of the budget. 

 

iii. The debt ceilings in Section 3.08 of this Policy are not exceeded. 

 

D. Lease Financing of Real Property: Lease financing for facilities is appropriate for facilities 

for which there is insufficient time to obtain voter approval or in instances where obtaining 

voter approval is not feasible. Such financings will be structured in accordance with Section 

3.01 of the Policy. If and when voter approved debt proceeds become available 

subsequently, the District will use such proceeds to take out the financing where 

appropriate. 

 

E. Identified Repayment Source: The District will, when feasible, issue debt with a defined 

revenue source in order to preserve the use of General Fund supported debt for projects 

with no stream of user-fee revenues. Examples of revenue sources include voter- approved 

taxes that repay general obligation or special tax bonds. 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 8 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY                                                                                 May 2017 

F. Use of General Obligation Bonds: Voter-approved general obligation bonds typically 

provide the lowest cost of borrowing and do not impact the District’s General Fund. 

General obligation bond debt, to the extent authorized for the District, requires either two-

thirds approval of the voters (in the case of traditional general obligation bonds) or 55% 

approval of the voters (in the case of general obligation bonds issued pursuant to 

Proposition 39). In recognition of the difficulty in achieving the required voter approval to 

issue general obligation bonds, such bonds will be generally limited to facilities and 

projects that provide wide public benefit and for which broad public support has been 

generated. 
 

G. Use of Revenue Bonds: Revenue bonds supported solely from fees are not included when 

bond rating agencies calculate debt ratios. Repayment of such bonds would rely on 

dedicated, pledged funds such as developer fees. Accordingly, in order to preserve General 

Fund debt capacity and budget flexibility, revenue bonds will be preferred to General Fund 

supported debt when a distinct and identifiable revenue stream can be identified to support 

the issuance of bonds at a cost effective rate. 

 

H. Use of Asset Transfer COPs: The District will use an “asset transfer” COP financing to 

finance emergency capital needs for which there are no other viable financing options. 

Additionally, asset transfer COPs may be used if significant savings in financing costs can 

be generated compared to other financing alternatives. 

 

I. Pay-As-You-Go Financing: Except in extenuating circumstances, the District will fund 

routine maintenance projects in each year’s capital program with pay-as-you-go financing. 

Extenuating circumstances may include unusually large and non-recurring budgeted 

expenditures, or when depleted reserves and weak revenues would require the delay or 

deletion of necessary capital projects. 

 

J. Use of Special Financing Structures: The District may use special financing structures 

permitted by the federal government if they are determined to result in sufficiently lower 

financing costs versus traditional tax-exempt bonds and/or COPs to offset any additional 

administrative and compliance costs and risks. 

 

K. Capital Appreciation Debt: The District may issue Capital Appreciation Bonds (“CABs”) 

pursuant to the law. However, CABs generally result in higher interest costs and may fail 

to match the cost of the project to the benefits received over the time period the CABs are 

outstanding. CABs will be avoided unless the Board determines it is necessary to issue 

CABs for urgent projects that cannot be more cost-effectively financed by an alternative 

method. 

 

Section 2.03 State Law 
 

Section 18 of Article XVI of the State Constitution contains the basic “debt limitation” formula 

applicable to the District. 
 

Sections 1(b)(2) and 1(b)(3) of Article XIII A of the State Constitution allow the District to issue 

traditional  general  obligation  bonds  and  Proposition  39  bonds,  respectively.  The    statutory 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

authority for issuing general obligation bonds (including CABs) is contained in Section 15000 et 

seq. of the Education Code. Additional provisions applicable only to Proposition 39 general 

obligation bonds are contained in Section 15264 et seq. of the Education Code. An alternative 

procedure for issuing general obligation bonds is also available in Section 53506 et seq. of the 

Government Code. 
 

The statutory authority for issuing TRANs is contained in Section 53850 et seq. of the Government 

Code. Authority for lease financings is found in Section 17455 et seq. of the Education Code and 

additional authority is contained in Sections 17400 et seq., 17430 et seq. and 17450 et seq. of the 

Education Code. The District may also issue Mello-Roos bonds pursuant to Section 53311 et seq. 

of the Government Code. 
 

Section 2.04    Annual Review 
 

The Policy shall be reviewed and submitted to the Board for approval separately from the budget 

at least annually. The Chief Business Officer is the designated administrator of the Policy and has 

overall responsibility, with the Board’s approval, for decisions related to the structuring of all 

District debt issues. The Chief Business Officer may delegate the day-to-day responsibility for 

managing the District’s debt and lease financings. The Board is the obligated issuer of all District 

debt and awards all purchase contracts for bonds, COPs, TRANs and any other debt issuances. 

 

Article III.       Structural Features, Legal and Credit Concerns 
 

Section 3.01    Structure of Debt Issues 
 

A. Maturity of Debt: The duration of a debt issue shall be consistent, to the extent possible, 

with the economic or useful life of the improvement or asset that the issue is financing. The 

final maturity of the debt shall be equal to or less than the useful life of the assets being 

financed, and the average life of the financing shall not exceed 120% of the average life of 

the assets being financed. In addition, the District shall consider the overall impact of the 

current and future debt burden of the financing when determining the duration of the debt 

issue. 
 

i. General Obligation Bonds: 

a. The final maturity of General Obligation Bonds will be limited to the shorter of the 

average useful life of the asset financed or 25 years when such bonds are issued 

pursuant to the Education Code. 
 

b. The final maturity of General Obligation Bonds issued under the Government Code 

will be limited to the shorter of the average useful life of the asset financed or 40 

years. Per AB 182, the maturity of the bonds may not exceed 30 years unless there 

is no compounding of interest. 
 

c. General Obligation Bond issues will generally be sized to the amount reasonably 

expected to be required for two years’ expenditure requirements. 
 

ii. Lease-Purchase Obligations: The final maturity of equipment or real property lease 

obligations will be limited to the useful life of the assets to be financed.  The 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 10 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

final maturity of real property obligations will also consider the size of the 

financing. 

 

iii. Mello-Roos Obligations and Revenue Bonds: These obligations, although repaid 

through additional taxes levied on a discrete group of taxpayers or from pledged 

developer fees, constitute overlapping indebtedness of the District and have an 

impact on the overall level of debt affordability. The District will develop separate 

guidelines for the issuance of such obligations as the need arises. 
 

B. Debt Service Structure: The District shall design the financing schedule and repayment of 

debt so as to take best advantage of market conditions, provide flexibility, and, as practical, 

to recapture or maximize its debt capacity for future use. Annual debt service payments 

will generally be structured on a level basis per component financed; however, principal 

amortization may occur more quickly or slowly where permissible, to meet debt 

repayment, tax rate, and flexibility goals. 
 

C. Capitalized Interest: Unless required for structuring purposes, the District will avoid the 

use of capitalized interest in order to avoid unnecessarily increasing the bond size and 

interest expense. Certain types of financings such as COPs or LRBs may require that 

interest on the debt be paid from capitalized interest until the District has use and 

possession of the pledged asset. However, the District may pledge assets using an asset- 

transfer structure as collateral for the issue in order to eliminate the need for capitalized 

interest. 
 

D. Call Provisions: The Chief Business Officer and Controller, based upon analysis from the 

financial advisor of the economics of callable versus non-callable features, shall set forth 

call provisions for each issue. 
 

Section 3.02    Sale of Securities 
 

There are three methods of sale: competitive, negotiated, and private placement. The preferred 

method of sale shall be the competitive method as it is likely to result in the lowest interest cost to 

the District. All three methods of sale shall be considered for all issuance of debt, however, as each 

method has the potential to achieve the lowest financing cost given the right conditions.  Any 

award through negotiation shall be subject to approval by the District, generally by the Chief 

Business Officer or other person designated by the Chief Business Officer, to ensure that interest 

costs are in accordance with comparable market interest rates. When a competitive bidding process 

is deemed the most advantageous method of sale for the District, award will be based upon, among 

other factors, the lowest offered True Interest Cost (“TIC”). While not used as frequently as 

negotiated or competitive sale methods, a private placement sale would be appropriate when the 

financing can or must be structured for a single or limited number of purchasers or where the terms 

of the private placement are more beneficial to the District than either a negotiated or competitive 

sale. 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

Section 3.03   Markets 
 

The District shall consider products and conditions in the capital markets in meeting the District’s 

financing needs. When practical in its financing program, the District shall consider local and 

regional markets as well as retail and institutional investors. 
 

Section 3.04    Credit Enhancements and Derivatives 
 

The District may enter into credit enhancement agreements such as municipal bond insurance, 

surety bonds, letters of credit, and lines of credit with commercial banks, municipal bond insurance 

companies, or other financial entities when their use is judged to lower borrowing costs, eliminate 

restrictive covenants, or have a net economic benefit to the financing. The credit rating of any 

counterparty must be at least A+ at the time of the transaction. The District shall use a competitive 

process to select providers of such products to the extent applicable. In order to assure that the 

District purchases credit enhancement cost-effectively, the Chief Business Officer will review an 

economic analysis, by maturity where appropriate, prepared by the financial advisor before 

selecting which maturities to insure. 
 

The District may also undertake certain hedging strategies in connection with its debt issues. 

Authorized strategies include interest rate caps and their variants. The Chief Business Officer may 

develop an appropriate policy regarding interest rate swaps and other derivatives for approval by 

the Board. Such policy, if approved, will be integrated into this Policy. 
 

Section 3.05    Impact on Operating Budget and District Debt Burden 
 

When considering any debt issuance, the potential impact of debt service and additional operating 

costs associated with new projects on the operating budget of the District, both short and long-

term, will be evaluated. The projected ratio of annual debt service secured by the General Fund to 

General Fund expenditures is one method, as is the additional debt burden of overlapping agencies 

on taxpayers. The cost of debt issued for major capital repairs or replacements should be judged 

against the potential cost of delaying such repairs. 
 

Section 3.06    Debt Limitation 
 

Section 15106 of the Education Code limits the District’s total outstanding bonded debt (i.e., the 

principal portion only) to 2.5% of the assessed valuation of the taxable property of the District. 

Thus, Section 15106 of the Education Code limits the issuance of new debt when the District has 

total bonded indebtedness in excess of 2.5% of the assessed valuation in the District. TRANs and 

lease payment obligations in support of COPs/LRBs generally do not count against this limit 

except as provided in Section 17422 of the Education Code. 
 

Section 3.07    Debt Issued to Finance Operating Costs 
 

The District cannot finance general operating costs from debt having maturities greater than 

thirteen months. However, the District may deem it necessary to finance cash flow requirements 

under certain conditions. Such cash flow borrowing must be payable from taxes, income, revenue, 

cash receipts and other moneys attributable to the fiscal year in which the debt is issued. 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

General operating costs include, but are not limited to, those items normally funded in the District’s 

annual operating budget and having a useful life of less than one year. 
 

The Chief Business Officer will review potential financing methods to determine which method 

results in the lowest cost to the District. Potential financing sources include Tax and Revenue 

Anticipation Notes (TRANs), commercial bank lines of credit, temporary borrowing from the 

County of Los Angeles Treasurer, and internal temporary interfund borrowing. In analyzing the 

impact on District cost, the Chief Business Officer will consider the lost interest earnings for the 

District funds providing temporary borrowing capacity. 
 

Section 3.08    Credit Rating Methodologies and Tracking of District’s Performance Scores 
 

Debt Burden Ratios and Credit Rating Methodologies: The District’s credit ratings are an 

important factor that directly impact the interest cost of the District’s debt. S&P and Moody’s have 

released revised methodologies for determining an issuer’s underlying or implicit general 

obligation rating. A key objective of the new methodologies is to make the process of determining 

an issuer’s rating more transparent, thus enabling the District itself to see how its performance on 

various rating criteria affects its credit ratings. 

 

In addition to considering the District’s credit performance as measured using the S&P and 

Moody’s methodologies, the following debt burden ratios should be considered in developing debt 

issuance plans: 
 

 Ratio of Outstanding Debt to Assessed Value. The ratio “Direct Debt” shall be 

calculated using both G.O. Bonds and COPs. In addition, the ratio “Overall Direct 

Debt” or “Overall Debt” shall be calculated by aggregating all debt issues 

attributable to agencies located in the District as presented in the California 

Municipal Statistics Overlapping Debt Statement. It is important to monitor the 

levels and growth of Direct Debt and Overall Debt as they portray the debt burden 

borne by the District’s taxpayers and serve as proxies for taxpayer capacity to take 

on additional debt in the future. 
 

 Ratio of Outstanding Debt Per Capita. The formula for this computation is 

Outstanding Debt divided by the population residing within the District, based upon 

the most recent estimates as determined by the United States Bureau of the Census. 

Ratios shall be computed for both “Direct Debt Per Capita” and “Overall Debt Per 

Capita”. 
 

 Ratio of Annual Lease Debt Service to General Unrestricted Fund Expenditures. 

The formula for this computation is annual lease debt service expenditures divided 

by General Unrestricted Funds (i.e., General and Debt Service Funds) expenditures 

(excluding interfund transfers & other outgo) as reported in the most recent annual 

CCFS 311 Report. 
 

 Proportion of Fixed-Rate and Variable-Rate COPs Issues. The District can benefit 

from some variable rate exposure in its portfolio of COPs/LRBs. However, the 
District shall keep its variable rate exposure, to the extent not hedged or swapped 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

to fixed rate, at or below 20% of the total principal of outstanding COPs/LRBs or 

$100 million, whichever is less. “Hedges” include unrestricted cash resources as 

well as interest rate products such as caps and collars. Under no circumstances will 

the District issue variable rate debt for arbitrage purposes. If variable rate debt is 

used, the Chief Business Officer will periodically, but at least annually, determine 

whether it is appropriate to convert the debt to fixed interest rates. 
 

A. Debt Affordability: The determination of how much indebtedness the District should incur 

will be based on a Capital Financing Plan (the “Plan”) that is currently being developed by 

the Chief Business Officer, which analyzes the long-term infrastructure needs of the 

District, and the impact of planned debt issuances on the long- term affordability of all 

outstanding debt. The Plan will be based on the District’s current capital plan and will 

include all District financings to be repaid from the General Fund, special funds or ad 

valorem property taxes. The affordability of the issuance of debt will be determined by 

evaluating, among other factors, the impact such issuance has on the District’s credit 

ratings and borrowing costs and analyzing debt service metric trends over time. 
 

B. Targets and Ceilings for Debt Affordability: One of the factors contributing to the District’s 

high credit ratings is its moderate General Fund-supported debt level relative to other large 

issuers and as compared to the resources available to repay the debt. The issuance of debt 

to be repaid from the General Fund and other internal District resources (typically, the 

District’s certificates of participation) must be carefully monitored to maintain a balance 

between debt and said resources. 

 

The District’s credit environment is also affected by the District’s issuance of its General 

Obligation Bonds paid from voter approved tax levies as well as the debt issuance activities of 

other agencies (for example, the City of Palmdale, City of Lancaster and the County of Los 

Angeles whose jurisdictions overlap those of the District (“Overlapping Debt”). It is important for 

the District to examine debt burden ratios for such Overlapping Debt even though such debt is not 

paid from the District’s Unrestricted General Fund or other internal resources. Further, the tax 

receipts used to repay the District’s General Obligation Bonds are levied and collected by the 

County of Los Angeles and are not controlled by the District.  

 

Table 1 lists the debt burden factors that will be monitored by the Chief Business Officer in the 

case of debt to be repaid from the General Unrestricted Fund or other District resources. These 

factors will be compared to targeted and maximum levels for those factors. The targets and ceilings 

are intended to guide policy. The targets and ceilings do not mean that debt issuance is 

automatically approved if there is room under a particular target or ceiling. On the contrary, each 

and every proposed debt issuance must be individually presented to and approved by the Board of 

Trustees. 

 

Table 2 indicates the benchmark debt burden ratios to be monitored by the Chief Business Officer 

that recognize the combined direct debt and overall debt of the District, as applicable. 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 14 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

The Office of the Chief Business Officer shall annually prepare or cause to be prepared a Debt 

Report providing details of the calculations of debt ratios and projections of the impact of future 

debt issuance on the District’s direct debt. The Chief Business Officer shall also develop 

appropriate appendices to the Debt Report containing relevant information on any rating agency 

and/or Government Finance Officers Association debt policy guidelines with respect to debt 

burden ratios. 

 

Debt Ratios: The following table sets forth the debt ratios to be monitored under the Policy 

and their targeted levels and Policy ceilings, if applicable. 

 

Debt Burden Ratio: The debt burden ratio is an indicator on whether the District can cover 

its full annual debt service payments with its annual revenue.  This ratio shows the 

relationship between the District’s revenue, debt-paying capacity and it’s required debt 

payment.  For analysis purposes, the District should review it’s 3-year trend on an annual 

basis.  To calculate this ratio, divide the total annual revenue of funds that pay the debt 

services by the total full debt service annual payment.  If debt burden ratio shrinks each year, 

it might be a sign that the District’s debt payment is becoming burdensome.  It will also 

show insight into how the District is paying off its debt.  If there is another funding source 

outside of general unrestricted fund paying off the debt and then it begins to use unrestricted 

funds, it could be a sign that the revenue stream intended to pay down the debt is not 

sufficient. 

Table 1 

 
Debt Factor Target Ceiling 

Annual COP/LRB Debt Service 

Payment Limit  

3.5% of General 

Unrestricted Fund  

Expenditures 

(Minus Other 

Outgo) 

5.0% of General 

Unrestricted Fund 

Expenditures 

(Minus Other 

Outgo) 

COP/LRB Annual Debt Service 

Payment Cap 2017 

$3.5 Million 

 

Table 2 

 
Debt Burden Ratio Benchmark 

 

Direct Debt to Assessed Value 
 

Moody’s Median for Similarly Rated School Districts 

With Student Population Above 10,000; with emphasis on 

community colleges in Southern California, if possible, or 

school districts in the local county 

 Standard & Poor’s Mean for Similarly Rated School 

Districts With Student Population Above 10,000; with 

emphasis on community colleges in Southern California, 

if possible, or school districts in the local county 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 15 of 50 

 

 

Overall Debt to Assessed Value Moody’s Median for Similarly Rated School Districts 

With Student Population Above 10,000; with emphasis on 

community colleges in Southern California, if possible, or 

school districts in the local county 

 Standard & Poor’s Mean for Similarly Rated School 

Districts With Student Population Above 10,000; with 

emphasis on community colleges in Southern California, 

if possible, or school districts in the local county 

Direct Debt Per Capita Moody’s Median for Similarly Rated School Districts 

With Student Population Above 10,000; with emphasis on 

community colleges in Southern California, if possible, or 

school districts in the local county 

 Standard & Poor’s Mean for Similarly Rated School 

Districts With Student Population Above 10,000; with 

emphasis on community colleges in Southern California, 

if possible, or school districts in the local county 

Overall Debt Per Capita Moody’s Median for Similarly Rated School Districts 

With Student Population Above 10,000; with emphasis on 

community colleges in Southern California, if possible, or 

school districts in the local county 

 Standard & Poor’s Mean for Similarly Rated School 

Districts With Student Population Above 10,000; with 

emphasis on community colleges in Southern California, 

if possible, or school districts in the local county 

 

“Direct Debt” includes all debt that is repaid from the General Unrestricted Fund or from 

any tax revenues deposited into special funds not supporting revenue bonds. 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 16 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

“Overall Debt” includes any debt that is paid from general tax revenues and special 

assessments by residents in the District. This includes debt issued by other agencies whose 

taxing boundaries overlap the District, such as the City of Palmdale, City of Palmdale and 

the County of Los Angeles. 

 

C. Monitor Impact on District Taxpayer of Voter-Approved Taxes: In addition to the analysis 

of the District’s debt affordability, the Plan will review the impact of debt issuance on 

District taxpayers. This analysis will incorporate the District’s General Obligation Bond 

tax levies as well as tax rates imposed by overlapping jurisdictions as reported in the 

District’s CAFR. In addition, the District will monitor the performance of the actual tax 

levy rate per $100,000 of assessed value for each General Obligation Bond authorization 

versus what the tax levy rate was expected to be at the time of the original bond election 

and include said performance in the Debt Report. The Measure AV was authorized with a 

tax levy limitation of $25 per $100,000 of assessed value to repay bonds issued under each 

authorization (Measure). 

 
 

Article IV.       Related Issues 
 

Section 4.01    Capital Improvement Program 
 

Planning and management of the District’s Facilities Master Plan rests primarily with the Facilities 

Services Department under the President/Superintendent’s direction, subject to review by the Bond 

Oversight Committee and approval by the Board of Trustees and California Community College’s 

Chancellor’s Office. The Facilities Services Department will, as appropriate, supplement and 

revise these plans in keeping with the District’s current needs for the acquisition, development 

and/or improvement of District’s real estate and facilities. The plans must include a summary of 

total cost of each project, schedules for the projects, the expected quarterly cash requirements, and 

annual appropriations, in order for the projects to be completed. The Chief Business Officer shall 

prepare an annual Capital Financing Plan in conjunction with the capital program budget as part 

of the annual budget for the District. 

Section 4.02    Reporting of Debt 
 

In accordance with S.B. 1029 the district will report implement these debt management policies 

and report no later than 30 days after a new debt issuance to the California Debt and Investment 

Advisory Committee (CDIAC). 

 

The report shall include the issuance date, the amount of (i) new debt issued (ii) debt outstanding, 

(iii) debt authorized but not issued, (iv) assessed valuation and (v) outstanding debt expressed as 

a percentage of assessed valuation, each as of the end of the fiscal year.  The District’s 

dissemination agent’s shall post/update the information on the Municipal Securities Rulemaking 

Board’s Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA) website. 
 

The Chief Business Officer will also produce an annual Debt Report which covers the following 

information: (i) bonded debt limitation and assessed valuation growth, (ii) debt outstanding, (iii) 

bonds authorized but unissued, (iv) debt refundings, (v) tax rate performance on outstanding bonds, 

(vi) cost of district debt, and (vii) credit ratings. This report will be provided to the Board and  



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 17 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

 

uploaded to the District’s website. 
 

Section 4.03    Financial Disclosure 
 

The Internal Auditor, in conjunction with the CBO, shall be responsible for the District’s 

disclosure compliance functions, in conjunction with the disclosure counsel appointed by the 

District. 
 

The District shall prepare or cause to be prepared appropriate disclosures as required by Securities 

and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12, the federal government, the State of California, rating 

agencies, bond insurers, underwriters, bond counsel, investors, taxpayers, and other persons or 

entities entitled to disclosure to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations and 

agreements to provide ongoing disclosure. 
 

The District shall make available its annual CCFS311s, budgets, and audit reports on the District’s 

website.  The he District’s dissemination agent will update the information on the Electronic 

Municipal Market Access (EMMA) website so that interested persons have a convenient way to 

locate major financial reports and documents pertaining to the District’s finances and debt. 
 

Section 4.04    Review of Financing Proposals 
 

All capital financing proposals involving a pledge of the District’s credit through the sale of 

securities, execution of loans or lease agreements, or otherwise directly or indirectly lending or 

pledging of the District’s credit initially shall be referred to the Chief Business Officer who shall 

determine the financial feasibility of such proposal and make recommendations accordingly to the 

Board. 
 

Section 4.05    Establishing Financing Priorities 
 

The Chief Business Officer shall administer and coordinate the Policy and the District’s debt 

issuance program and activities, including timing of issuance, method of sale, structuring the issue, 

and marketing strategies. The Chief Business Officer shall, as appropriate, report to the 

Superintendent and the Board regarding the status of the current and future year programs and 

make specific recommendations. 
 

Section 4.06    Rating Agency and Credit Enhancer Relations 
 

The District shall endeavor to maintain effective relations with the rating agencies and credit 

enhancers. The Chief Business Officer along with the District’s general financial advisor shall 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 18 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

meet with, make presentations to, or otherwise communicate with the rating agencies on a 

consistent and as appropriate basis in order to keep the agencies informed about the District’s 

capital plans, debt issuance program, and other appropriate financial information. The Chief 

Business Officer with the District’s general financial advisor shall communicate with credit 

enhancers as appropriate to determine if a cost effective product for the District is commercially 

available with reasonable terms and conditions. 
 

Section 4.07    Investment Community Relations 
 

The District shall endeavor to maintain a positive relationship with the investment community. 

The Chief Business Officer shall, as necessary, prepare reports and other forms of communication 

regarding the District’s indebtedness, as well as its future financing plans. This includes 

information presented to the media and other public sources of information. To the extent 

applicable, such communications shall be posted on the District’s website. 
 

Section 4.08    Refunding and Restructuring Policy 
 

Whenever deemed to be in the best interest of the District, the District shall consider refunding   or 

restructuring outstanding debt when financially advantageous or beneficial for debt repayment and 

structuring flexibility. The Chief Business Officer shall review a net present value analysis of any 

proposed refunding in order to make a determination regarding the cost-effectiveness of the 

proposed refunding. The minimum net present value savings as a percentage of the refunded 

aggregate principal amount to be considered for refunding shall be no less than 3% per maturity 

unless, at the discretion of the Chief Business Officer, a lower percentage is more applicable, for 

situations including, but not limited to, maturities with only a few years until maturity or COPs 

being defeased or redeemed from proceeds of GO Bonds or other structuring considerations. In 

addition, the net present value savings must exceed any negative arbitrage associated with the 

refunding, subject to the Chief Business Officer’s discretion. Another consideration in deciding 

which debt to refinance and the timing of the refinancing shall be maximization of the District’s 

expected net savings over the life of the bonds. 
 

The Chief Business Officer may waive the 3% per maturity savings threshold when evaluating a 

fixed rate refunding of variable rate debt, as the refinancing of certain variable rate structures may 

provide other substantial benefits to the District that include, but are not limited to, elimination of 

interest rate risk, renewal risk, and counterparty risk. 
 

The Chief Business Officer shall be empowered to restructure escrow funds for the District’s 

refunded Bonds and COPs from time to time when savings can be achieved. The Chief Business 

Officer shall review a savings analysis of any proposed restructuring in order to make a 

determination regarding its cost-effectiveness. The target net savings shall be no less than $1.0 

million unless, at the discretion of the Chief Business Officer, a lower amount is more appropriate 

given the nature of the particular escrow fund. Any savings from such restructuring shall be applied 

in accordance with legal and tax considerations and legal analysis at the time such savings are 

available. 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

Section 4.09    Investment of Borrowed Proceeds 
 

The District acknowledges its on-going fiduciary responsibilities to actively manage the proceeds 

of debt issued for public purposes in a manner that is consistent with California law governing the 

investment of public funds and with the permitted securities covenants of related bond documents 

executed by the District. Where applicable, the District’s official investment policy and legal 

documents for particular debt issuance shall govern specific methods of investment of bond related 

proceeds. Preservation of principal will be the primary goal of any investment strategy followed 

by the availability of funds, followed by return on investment. 
 

The District shall competitively bid the purchase of investment securities (except State and Local 

Government Series (SLGs) issued by the US Treasury), investment contracts, float contracts, 

forward purchase agreements and any other investments pertaining to its tax-exempt debt issues. 

A duly registered investment advisor or the County of Los Angeles Treasurer-Tax Collector shall 

solicit bids for investment products. Eligible and qualified providers, but not any of the members 

of the District’s financial advisor pool, may bid on investment products. 
 

The management of public funds shall enable the District to respond to changes in markets or 

changes in payment or construction schedules so as to (i) ensure liquidity and (ii) minimize risk. 
 

Section 4.10    Federal Arbitrage Rebate Requirement 
 

The District shall maintain or cause to be maintained an appropriate system of accounting to 

calculate bond investment arbitrage earnings in accordance with the Tax Reform Act of 1986, as 

amended or supplemented and applicable United States Treasury regulations related thereto. 
 

Section 4.11    Transaction Records 
 

The Chief Business Officer or designee shall maintain complete records of decisions made in 

connection with each financing, including the selection of members of the financing team, the 

structuring of the financing, selection of credit enhancement products and providers, and selection 

of investment products. Each transaction file shall include the official transcript for the financing, 

the final number runs and a post-pricing summary of the debt issue. The Chief Business Officer 

shall timely provide a summary of each financing to the Board. 
 

Section 4.12    Financing Team Members 
 

A. Retention of Consultants 

 

i. General: All financial advisors, investment advisors, bond counsel, disclosure 

counsel, tax counsel, and underwriters will be selected at the discretion of the CBO 

and approved by the Superintendent/President.  The CBO may utilize a known, 

trusted advisor or start pools to be created through a Request for Proposals (RFP) 

or Request for Qualifications (RFQ) process, whichever is most appropriate given 

the circumstances. The District’s contracting policies will apply to all contracts with 

finance professionals. Generally, contracts for financial advisors, investment 

advisors, underwriters, and bond, tax, and disclosure counsels will be for up to five 

years. 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

Members of the financing team for each specific transaction will be identified and 

presented to the Board as part of the financing transaction Board report or as a 

separate informative. If however, an urgent financing opportunity or need arises 

such that there is not enough time to obtain Board approval of the financing team 

through the regular process, the Superintendent may authorize the appointment of 

the team. 
 

ii. Underwriters: The minimum qualifications for underwriters to be considered for 

District transactions are: the firm must have a permanent office in the State of 

California; the firm must have completed at least ten (10) financings in the prior 

two years; the firm must maintain net capital of at least $100,000 at all times; the 

lead investment banker must have at least three years of experience working on 

large, complex transactions and must be authorized to sign a bond purchase 

contract; the firm must hold and maintain at all times all appropriate and required 

Federal and State licenses and registrations; and the firm must at all times have at 

least one full-time professional employee with a NASD Series 53 license 

(Municipal Securities Principal). 
 

Based upon evaluation of submitted statements of qualifications, underwriting 

firms will be assigned to one of four specific tiers: 
 

Tier Eligible Syndicate Assignments 

Senior 

Manager 

Senior, co-senior, or co-manager on any transaction 

Co-Senior 

Manager 

Co-senior or co-manager on any transaction; senior manager 

on transactions under $200 million principal amount. 

Co-Manager Co-manager on any transaction. 

Emerging 

Firm 

Co-manager with a reduced liability on appropriate 

transactions. 

 

In the event the District issues bonds through a negotiated sale, the selection of 

underwriters will be based upon a mini-RFP process and will generally be for a 

single transaction. The mini-RFP will specify the scoring system for selection of 

the underwriters and will consider the following factors in decreasing order of 

priority: 
 

1. Past performance on financing transactions. Exceptionally strong or 

poor results on District transactions will carry extra weight. 

2. Analysis of the District’s financing needs and proposed financing 

structure, recommended marketing plan and determination that the firm 

has sufficient net capital. 

3. Proposed underwriting fees, including takedown, direct expenses, and 

the cost of underwriter’s counsel. 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

4. Demonstrated commitment to, track record in, and investing in the 

communities served by the LAUSD. 
 

Underwriters may be selected for multiple transactions if multiple issuances are 

planned for the same project. In addition, the District will include at least one firm 

with an office within the District’s boundaries on each standard, fixed rate financing 

transaction. 
 

iii. General Financial Advisor: The District will retain a general financial advisory 

team to provide general advice on the District’s debt management program, 

financial condition, budget options and rating agency relationships. Additionally, 

the general financial advisor will structure the District’s General Obligation and 

refunding bond issuances and may be used on an as-needed basis to structure 

issuances that do not fall into the other categories of District debt obligations. Any 

firm serving as general financial advisor must be duly registered at all times with 

both the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Municipal Securities 

Rulemaking Board (MSRB) and must also hold any certifications and/or licenses 

required by the SEC and/or MSRB. 

 

iv. As-Needed Bond Counsel, Tax Counsel, and Disclosure Counsel: The District will 

select an external legal team to be used on an as-needed basis to assist with debt 

issuances or special projects that do not fall under the bonds, COPs, and TRANs 

categories of District debt obligations. Additionally, one or more of the firms may 

be selected to provide general legal advice on, among other things, debt financing, 

disclosure documents, and continuing disclosure. 

 

v. Range of Financings: Financial advisory, external legal counsel, and underwriting 

teams will be selected for the District’s COPs financings, TRANs, special revenue 

bonds and any other bond program which may be created. Depending on particular 

expertise and consultant availability, some firms may be used on more than one 

program. However, efforts will be made to establish different teams to provide a 

number of firms the opportunity to participate in District contracts. 

 

B. Use of Independent Financial Advisors 

 

i. Use of Independent Financial Advisors: Any firm serving as financial advisor must 

be duly registered as a municipal advisor on financings at all times with both the 

Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Municipal Securities 

Rulemaking Board (MSRB) and must also hold any certifications and/or licenses 

required by the SEC and/or MSRB. In recognition of the fact that in a financing the 

goals of the underwriters and the issuer are inherently in conflict, the District will 

strive to hire financial advisors who do not participate in the underwriting or trading 

of bonds or other securities. Under certain circumstances, however, it may be in the 

District’s interests to hire an investment banking firm to act as financial advisor on 

specific bond issues, although said firm must obey any SEC and/or 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

MSRB rules and restrictions pertaining to broker-dealer or investment banks 

serving as financial advisor. 

 

ii. Financial Advisor Pool or direct award: The          May 2017 may direct award 

based on a competitive process or maintain a pool of financial advisors separated 

into two tiers. 

a. Firms in the General Financial Advisor Tier may be used for various 

financial projects for which the District requires advanced financial 

expertise not available within the District. The General FA Tier will also be 

used to select the District’s Independent Registered Municipal Advisor 

(IRMA). Firms in the General FA Tier may serve as financial advisors on 

the District’s debt issuances. 

b. Firms in the Transactional Financial Advisor Tier may serve the district as 

financial advisors on the District’s debt issuances. 

 

iii. Independent Registered Municipal Advisor: The          May 2017 may select a 

specific firm to serve as the District’s IRMA, as defined by the SEC. In order to 

facilitate open communication with underwriters, the District will prepare and post 

on its website a letter stating that the District has an IRMA. Before acting on any 

proposal received from underwriters, the District will provide the proposal to the 

IRMA and consider all feedback received from the IRMA. 

 

iv. Use of Investment Advisors for Investment Advice: Although, in most instances, 

the Chief Business Official will make all investment decisions relative to temporary 

investments pending the expenditure of bond proceeds, an investment advisor may 

provide investment advice on refundings and other transactions with specialized 

investment needs. Any firm serving as investment advisor on a District transaction 

must be registered at all times as an investment advisor with both the Securities and 

Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board 

(MSRB), as applicable, must hold any certifications and/or licenses required by the 

SEC and/or MSRB, and must present its Form ADV or equivalent and written fee 

proposal to the District prior to commencement of any work. 

 

C. Disclosure by Financing Team Members; Ethics 

 

All financing team members will be required to provide full and complete disclosure, under 

penalty of perjury, relative to any and all agreements with other financing team members 

and outside parties. The extent of the disclosure may vary depending on the nature of the 

transaction. However, in general terms, no agreements will be permitted which would 

compromise a firm’s ability to provide independent advice which is solely in the best 

interests of the District, or which could reasonably be perceived as a conflict of interest. 

All financing team members shall abide by the Board of Trustees code of ethics. 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 23 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

Section 4.13    Special Situations 
 

Changes in the capital markets, District programs and other unforeseen circumstances may from 

time to time produce situations that are not covered by the Policy. These situations may require 

modifications or exceptions to achieve policy goals. Management flexibility is appropriate and 

necessary in such situations, provided specific authorization is received from the Board of 

Trustees. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24 of 50 

 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 
 

APPENDIX A 

 

ANTELOPE VALLEY COMMUNITY 

COLLEGE DEBT ISSUANCE AND 

MANAGEMENT POLICY 

This Debt Management Policy (the “Policy”) provides written guidelines for the issuance of indebtedness 

by the Antelope Valley Community College District (the “District”) in satisfaction of the requirements 

of S.B. 1029, codified as part of Government Code Section 8855.  

Article I 

 

Purpose and Goals 

 

This Policy provides a framework for debt management and capital planning by the District.  

This Policy has been developed to meet the following goals: 

(1) Identifying the purposes for which the debt proceeds may be used. 

(2) Identifying the types of debt that may be issued. 

(3) Describing the relationship of the debt to, and integration with, the District’s capital 

improvement program. 

(4) Establishing policy goals related to the District’s planning goals and objectives. 

(5) Implementing internal control procedures to ensure that the proceeds of the proposed debt 

issuance will be directed to the intended use upon completion of the issuance. 

Article II 

 

Purposes for Which Debt Proceeds May be Used 

Authority and Purposes of the Issuance of Debt 

The laws of the State of California (the “State”) authorize the District to incur debt to make lease 

payments, contract debt, borrow money, and issue bonds for school improvement projects.  The District 

is authorized to contract debt to acquire, construct, reconstruct, rehabilitate, replace, improve, extend, 

enlarge, and equip such projects; to refund existing debt; or to provide for cash flow needs. 

State Law 

Section 18 of Article XVI of the State Constitution contains the “debt limitation” formula applicable to 

the District. 

 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 25 of 50 

 

 

 

There are a number of State laws that govern the issuance of general obligation bonds (“GO Bonds”) by 

community college districts.  Sections 1(b)(2) (Proposition 46) and 1(b)(3) of Article XIII A (Proposition 

39) of the State Constitution allow the District to issue GO Bonds.  The statutory authority for issuing 

GO Bonds is contained in Education Code Section 15000 et seq. Additional provisions applicable only 

to Proposition 39 GO Bonds are contained in Education Code Section 15264 et seq.  An alternative 

procedure for issuing GO Bonds is also available in Government Code Section 53506 et seq. 

The statutory authority for issuing Tax and Revenue Anticipation Notes (“TRANs”) is contained in 

Government Code Section 53850 et seq.  Authority for lease financings is found in Education Code 

Section 17455 et seq. and additional authority is contained in Education Code Sections 17400 et seq., 

17430 et seq. and 17450 et seq.  The District may also issue Mello-Roos bonds pursuant to Government 

Code Section 53311 et seq. 

Debt Issued to Finance Operating Costs 

The District may deem it necessary to finance cash flow requirements under certain conditions. Such cash 

flow borrowing must be payable from taxes, income, revenue, cash receipts and other moneys attributable 

to the fiscal year in which the debt is issued. 

General operating costs include, but are not limited to, those items normally funded in the District’s 

annual operating budget. 

The District’s Superintendent/President, or Executive Director of Business Services,          May 2017 

(“CBO”), will review potential financing methods to determine which method is most prudent for the 

District. Potential financing sources include tax and revenue anticipation notes, temporary borrowing 

from the Los Angeles County Treasurer and Tax Collector, and internal temporary interfund borrowing.  

Article III 

Types of Debt That May be Issued 

Types of Debt Authorized to be Issued 

Short-Term: The District may issue fixed-rate and/or variable rate short-term debt, which may 

include TRANs, when such instruments allow the District to meet its cash flow requirements. The District 

may also issue bond anticipation notes (“BANs”) to provide interim financing for bond projects that will 

ultimately be paid from GO Bonds.   

Long-Term: Debt issues may be used to finance essential capital facilities, projects and certain 

equipment where it is appropriate to spread the cost of the projects over more than one budget year. Long-

term debt should not be used to fund District operations. 

Long term debt in the form of GO Bonds may be issued under Article XIII A of the State 

Constitution, either under Proposition 46, which requires approval by at least a two-thirds (66.67%) 

majority of voters, or Proposition 39, which requires approval by at least 55% of voters, subject to certain 

accountability requirements and additional restrictions.   

The District may also enter into long-term leases and/or COPs for public facilities, property, and 

equipment.  



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 26 of 50 

 

 

Lease Financing: Lease-purchase obligations are a routine and appropriate means of financing 

capital equipment and certain capital facilities.  However, lease obligations may impact on budget 

flexibility.   

Use of General Obligation Bonds:  A significant portion of the District’s capital projects are 

projected to be funded by GO Bond proceeds.  Projects financed by the GO Bonds will be determined by 

the constraints of applicable law and the project list approved by voters. 

Article IV 

 

Relationship of Debt to and Integration with 

District’s Capital Improvement Program or Budget 

Impact on Operating Budget and District Debt Burden 

In evaluating financing options for capital projects, both short and long-term debt amortization will be 

evaluated when considering a debt issuance, along with the potential impact of debt service, and 

additional costs associated with new projects on the operating budget of the District.  The cost of debt 

issued for major capital repairs or replacements may be judged against the potential cost of delaying such 

repairs. 

Capital Improvement Program 

The CBO and the facilities staff have responsibility for the planning and management of the District’s 

capital improvement program subject to review and approval by the Board of Trustees.  Staff will, as 

appropriate, supplement and revise any applicable Facilities Master Plan in keeping with the District’s 

current needs for the acquisition, development and/or improvement of District’s real estate and facilities.  

Such plans may include a summary of the estimated cost of each project, schedules for the projects, the 

expected quarterly cash requirements, and annual appropriations, in order for the projects to be 

completed.   

Refunding and Restructuring Policy 

Considerations for Refunding.  

District’s Best Interest.  Whenever deemed to be in the best interest of the District, the 

District shall consider refunding or restructuring outstanding debt if it will be financially advantageous 

or beneficial for debt repayment and/or structuring flexibility.  

Net Present Value Analysis. The CBO shall review a net present value analysis of any 

proposed refunding in order to make a determination regarding the cost-effectiveness of the proposed 

refunding.   

Maximization of Expected Net Savings.  Another consideration in deciding which debt 

to refinance and the timing of the refinancing shall be maximization of the District’s expected net savings 

over the life of the bonds. 

Comply with Existing Legal Requirements.  The refunding of any existing debt shall 

comply with all applicable State and Federal laws governing such issuance. 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 27 of 50 

 

 

 

Article V 

Policy Goals Related to District’s Planning Goals and Objectives 

In following this Policy, the District shall pursue the following goals: 

The District shall strive to fund capital improvements from voter-approved GO Bond 

issues to preserve the availability of its General Fund for District operating purposes and other purposes 

that cannot be funded by such bond issues. 

The District shall endeavor to attain the best possible credit rating for each debt issue in 

order to reduce interest costs, within the context of preserving financial flexibility and meeting capital 

funding requirements. 

The District shall take all practical precautions and proactive measures to avoid any 

financial decision that will negatively impact current credit ratings on existing or future debt issues. 

The District shall, with respect to GO Bonds, remain mindful of its statutory debt limit in 

relation to assessed value growth within the school district and the tax burden needed to meet long-term 

capital requirements. 

The District shall consider market conditions and District cash flows when timing the 

issuance of debt. 

The District shall determine the amortization (maturity) schedule which will fit best 

within the overall debt structure of the District at the time the new debt is issued. 

The District shall match the term of the issue to the useful lives of assets funded by that 

issue whenever practicable and economic, while considering repair and replacement costs of those assets 

to be incurred in future. 

The District shall, when planning for the issuance of new debt, consider the impact of 

such new debt on overlapping debt of local, state and other governments that overlap with the District. 

The District shall, when issuing debt, assess financial alternatives to include new and 

innovative financing approaches, including whenever feasible, categorical grants, revolving loans or 

other State/federal aid, so as to minimize the encroachment on the District’s General Fund. 

The District shall, when planning for the sizing and timing of debt issuance, consider its 

ability to expend the funds obtained in a timely, efficient and economical manner. 

 

Article VI 

Internal Control Procedures for Issuance of Debt 

 to Ensure Intended Use of Proceeds 

Structure of Debt Issues 

Maturity of Debt: The duration of a debt issue shall be consistent, to the extent possible, with the 

economic or useful life of the improvement or asset that the issue is financing. Accordingly, the average 

life of the financing shall not exceed 120% of the average life of the assets being financed. In addition, 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 28 of 50 

 

 

the District shall consider the overall impact of the current and future debt burden of the financing when 

determining the duration of the debt issue. 

Debt Structure: 

GO Bonds: 

New Money Bond Issuances:  For new money bond issuances, the District shall 

size the bond issuance consistent with the “spend-down” requirements of the Internal Revenue Code and 

within any limits approved by the District’s voters.  To the extent possible, the District will also consider 

credit issues, market factors (e.g. bank qualification) and tax law when sizing the District’s bond issuance. 

Refunding Bond Issuances:  The sizing of refunding bonds will be determined by 

the amount of money that will be required to cover the principal of, accrued interest (if any) on, and 

redemption premium for the bonds to be defeased on the call date and to cover appropriate financing 

costs. 

Maximum Maturity:  All bonds issued by the District shall mature within the limits 

set forth in applicable provisions of the Education Code or the Government Code. The final maturity of 

bonds will also be limited to the average useful life of the assets financed or as otherwise required by tax 

law.   

Lease-Purchase Obligations: The final maturity of equipment or real property lease 

obligations will be limited to the useful life of the assets to be financed.   

Debt Service Structure: The District shall design the financing schedule and repayment of debt 

so as to take best advantage of market conditions, provide flexibility, and, as practical, to recapture or 

maximize its debt capacity for future use.  

Use of Proceeds 

The District shall be vigilant in using bond proceeds in accordance with the stated purposes at the time 

such debt was incurred.  In furtherance of the policy, and in connection with the issuance of all GO Bonds: 

 

As required by Government Code Section 53410, the District shall only use GO Bond 

proceeds for the purposes approved by the District’s voters; and 

The CBO shall have the responsibility, no less often than annually, to provide to the 

District’s Board of Trustees a written report which shall contain at least the following information: 

(i) The amount of the debt proceeds received and expended during the 

applicable reporting period; and 

(ii) The status of the acquisition, construction or financing of the school 

facility projects, as identified in any applicable bond measure, with the proceeds 

of the debt. 

These reports may be combined with other periodic reports which include the same information, including 

but not limited to, periodic reports made to the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission, 

or continuing disclosure reports or other reports made in connection with the debt.  These requirements 

shall apply only until the earliest of the following: (i) all the debt is redeemed or defeased, but if the debt 

is refunded, such provisions shall apply until all such refunding bonds are redeemed or defeased, or (ii) 

all proceeds of the debt, or any investment earnings thereon, are fully expended. 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 29 of 50 

 

 

The District shall post on the District website the Annual Report of the District’s 

Independent Bond Oversight Committee which has been given the responsibility to review the 

expenditure of GO Bond proceeds to assure the community that all GO Bond funds have been used for 

the construction, renovation, repair, furnishing and equipping of school facilities, and not used for teacher 

or administrator salaries or other operating expenses. 

The District shall hire an independent auditor to perform an annual independent financial 

and performance audit of the expenditure of GO Bond proceeds, and to post such audits on the District 

website. 

Antelope Valley Community College District 

Debt Issuance and Management Policy 

Adopted by the Board of Trustees on January 9, 2017 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 30 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

APPENDIX B 

 

ANTELOPE VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 

 
 LONG-TERM DEBT—TAX COMPLIANCE POLICY & PROCEDURES 

Statement of Purpose 
 

This Tax Compliance Policy (the “Policy”) sets forth specific policies of the Antelope Valley 
Community College District (the “District”) designed to monitor tax compliance by the District 

with respect to Tax-Advantaged Obligations,
2 

including but not limited to post-issuance tax 
compliance with applicable provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the 
“Code”), and regulations promulgated thereunder (the “Treasury Regulations”). 

 

This Policy is intended to document and supplement existing practices and describe various 

procedures and systems implemented and to be implemented to demonstrate compliance with the 

requirements that must be satisfied at the time of, and subsequent to, the issuance of Tax- 

Advantaged Obligations. Compliance with applicable provisions of the Code and the Treasury 

Regulations is an on-going process and an integral component of the District’s debt management 

program. Accordingly, implementation of this Policy will require ongoing surveillance through, 

and sometimes beyond, the final maturity of the related issue of Tax-Advantaged Obligations and, 

likely, consultation with legal counsel beyond the initial engagement for the issuance of particular 

obligations. 

 

This Policy is meant to set forth best practices and procedures and is intended to be revised over 

time. The Policy is meant to be the District’s initiative to document compliance with the provisions 

of the Federal tax law addressing Tax-Advantaged Bonds. Given the size, scope and complexity 

of the District’s financings and school construction and maintenance program, strict compliance 

with all elements of this Policy will require ongoing review and refinement of the Policy. Any 

failure to conform to any component of this Policy shall in no way infer that the District is not in 

compliance with the provisions of the Code applicable to Tax-Advantaged Obligations of the 

District. 

 
Policies and Procedures Generally 

 

The District’s Chief Business Officer (“CBO”) will establish a Tax Compliance Officer, (Internal 

Auditor) for monitoring tax compliance with regard to debt offerings.  The CBO shall also be 

responsible for ensuring adequate succession plan for transferring tax compliance responsibility 

when changes in staff occur. 

 
2 

The District issues (i) bonds, certificates of participation and other obligations, the interest on which is intended to 

be excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes (“Tax-Exempt Obligations”) and (ii) bonds and other 

obligations, which provide certain credits to bondholders in lieu of or in addition to interest payments or interest 

subsidy payments to issuers (e.g., Build America Bonds and Qualified School Construction Bonds), that finance 

property that was otherwise eligible to be financed with proceeds of Tax Exempt Obligations (“Tax Credit/Subsidy 

Obligations,” collectively with Tax-Exempt Obligations, “Tax-Advantaged Obligations”). 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 31 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

 

The Internal Auditor should coordinate procedures for record retention and review of such records 

as more fully described herein and needs to gain familiarity with Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) 

Forms 8038-G, 8038-B, 8038-CP, 14002, and relevant provisions of the Code and the Treasury 

Regulations, including but not limited to Treasury Regulations Sections 1.141- 2, 1.141-3, 1.141-

12, and 1.150-1 through 1.150-2. 

 

The Internal Auditor needs to review tax compliance procedures and systems on a periodic basis, 

but not less than annually, and consult with the District’s General Counsel, Chief Business Officer, 

and bond counsel as appropriate and as needed. 

 

Electronic media will be the preferred method for storage of all records maintained by the District 

in connection with tax compliance. Document maintenance requirements may change over time, 

and the Internal Auditor shall consult with bond counsel to develop and maintain a comprehensive 

records retention policy so as to facilitate continuing compliance with the provisions of the Code 

applicable to the District’s Tax-Advantaged Obligations. The District will maintain the following 

categories of records with respect to each issue of its outstanding Tax-Advantaged Obligations: 

 

(i) Documentation relating to the authorization, sale and issuance of Tax-Advantaged 

Obligations; 
 

(ii) Documentation setting forth the dates, amounts and purposes of each expenditure of Tax-

Advantaged Obligations were expended, as more fully described under “Expenditure of 

Proceeds” below; 
 

(iii) Documentation of arrangements governing the use of Property Financed with Proceeds 

of each issue of Tax-Advantaged Obligations, as more fully described under “Private Use 

and Ownership” below; and 
 

(iv) Documentation relating to the investment of proceeds and replacement proceeds allocable 

to each issue of Tax-Advantaged Obligations. 
 

The foregoing records shall be maintained by the District under the supervision of the Internal 

Auditor for a period of not less than six years after the final payment of principal on such Tax-

Advantaged Obligations, provided that with respect to property financed with proceeds of Tax-

Advantaged Obligations, such records shall be maintained for a period of not less than six years 

after the final payment of principal on such Tax-Advantaged Obligations or any Tax- Advantaged 

Obligations issued to refund, directly or indirectly, the issue of Tax-Advantaged Obligations that 

financed such property. 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 32 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

Issuance of Obligations 

 

With respect to each new issue of Tax-Advantaged Obligations, the Internal Auditor is  to (a) 

obtain and store a closing binder and/or CD or other electronic copy of the relevant and customary 

transaction documents, (b) confirm that bond counsel or tax counsel has filed with  IRS Form 

8038-G or Form 8038-B for such issue, and (c) coordinate receipt and retention of relevant books 

and records with respect to the investment and expenditure of the proceeds of  such Tax-

Advantaged Obligations. Documentation to be maintained shall include, but not be limited to: 

 

(i) Resolutions of the District and the County authorizing the issuance of the Bonds; 
 

(ii) Bond Purchase Agreement; 
 

(iii) (Preliminary Official Statement, Official Statement and any other documentation 

circulated to potential investors; 
 

(iv) Certifications with respect to delivery of Tax-Advantaged Bonds and the receipt of the 

purchase price therefor; 
 

(v) Tax Certificate or Tax Compliance Agreement (including exhibits, such as an issue  price 

certificate of the underwriter or, in the event of a private placement, the  purchaser); 
 

(vi) Schedules prepared by the Financial Advisor or Underwriter setting forth the sources and 

uses of funds, projected expenditure of proceeds, projected investment earnings on 

proceeds and computation of yields, together with any verification reports issued in 

connection with the issue; 
 

(vii) With respect to guaranteed investment agreements, or yield restricted defeasance 

escrows, documentation evidencing compliance with three-bid rules set forth in  Treasury 

Regulation Section 1.150-5; 
 

(viii) Any verification reports issued with respect to the issue; and 
 

(ix) Information reporting forms filed with the Internal Revenue Service, and proofs of filings 

such forms. 
 

Expenditure of Proceeds 

The administrator of each office that is responsible for spending proceeds of the District’s Tax— 

Advantaged Bonds will maintain records setting forth the date and amount of each disbursement 

of proceeds of Tax-Advantaged Obligations administered by its office, together with invoices or 

other proofs with respect to each disbursement, the name of the vendor or other payee, an 

identification of the facility or other property acquired, constructed, improved or renovated with 

the proceeds of such disbursement and a brief description of the actual work performed or property 

acquired with the proceeds of such disbursement. Within 120 days following the end  of 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 33 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

each fiscal year of the District, the Internal Auditor shall obtain records setting forth with respect 

to each disbursement of proceeds of Tax-Advantaged Obligations: 

 

(i) The date of such disbursement; 
 

(ii) The amount of such disbursement; 
 

(iii) The funding source (e.g., specific GO measure or COPs issue); 
 

(iv) The location code and location name; 
 

(v) The object of expenditure; and 
 

(vi) The project number and description, when available, or a brief description of the type of 

the expenditure. 
 

Within six months after the end of each fiscal year, the Internal Auditor shall prepare a report 

setting forth the date, amount and purpose of each disbursement of proceeds of each issue of Tax-

Advantaged Bonds during the prior fiscal year (the “Issue Expenditure Reports”). The term 

“purpose” shall mean each separate school facility financed with a disbursement or a description 

of other property financed with such disbursement. 

 
Private Use and Ownership 

 

Tax-Advantaged Obligations may lose their tax status if a bond issue meets (1) the private business 

use test (i.e., results in Private Use (defined below)) in Section 141(b)(1) of the Internal Revenue 

Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) and (2) (a) the private security or payment test (“Private 

Security or Payments”) in Section 141(b)(2) of the Code (collectively, the “Private Business 

Test”), or (b) the private loan financing test in Section 141(c) of the Code. The   Private 

Business Test relates to the use of the proceeds of an issue and the test is met if more than the 

lesser of (1) $15,000,000 and (2) 10 percent
3 

of the proceeds of an issue meet both prongs of the 

Private Business test. 
 

Definition of Private Payments. For purposes of this Policy, “Private Payments” means payments 

derived, directly or indirectly, in respect of property used or to be used for Private Use. The District 

will periodically enter into arrangements that result in Private Use but will not involve any Private 

Payments. Except in the case of certificates of participation, which involve leases of properties 

that are used in a Private Use or secures obligations that financed property used in a Private Use, 

or loans of bond proceeds, arrangements that result in Private Use, but do not 
 

 

 

 
 

3 
Such ten percent limitation is reduced to five percent with respect to Private Use that is either unrelated to 

governmental uses of proceeds of the same issue, or disproportionate to related governmental uses of proceeds of such 

issue. 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 34 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

involve Private Payments, will not cause the District’s general obligation bonds to become private 

activity bonds.
4

 

 

Definition of Private Use. For purposes of this Policy, the term “Private Use” means any activity 

that constitutes a trade or business that is carried on by persons or entities other than state or local 

governmental entities (“Nongovernmental Entities”). State or local governmental entities are 

referred to herein as “Governmental Entities.” The United States of America is not treated as a 

Governmental Entity. Any activity carried on by a person other than a natural person is treated as 

a trade or business. Any asset financed with Tax-Advantaged Obligations not owned by a 

Governmental Entity will be considered to be used in a Private Use. 

 

In most cases, Private Use will occur only if a Nongovernmental Entity has a special legal 

entitlement to use the bond financed property. Such a special legal entitlement includes ownership 

or actual or beneficial use pursuant to a lease, management, service or incentive payment contract, 

output contract, research agreement or similar arrangement. Private Use may also be established 

solely on the basis of a special economic benefit to one or more Nongovernmental Entities. 

 

Management and Service Contracts. With respect to management and service contracts, the 

determination of whether a particular contract results in Private Use shall be based on the 

application of the Code and Treasury Regulations, including particularly Revenue Procedure 97- 

13, 1997-1 C.B. 632, as amended by Revenue Procedure 2001-39, 2001-2 C.B. 39, a summary of 

which is attached hereto as Exhibit A. Such management and service contracts include, but are not 

limited to, operating agreements, construction management agreements, business services 

agreements, technical consulting services agreements and other similar agreements. Further, for 

purposes of determining the nature of a Private Use, any management or service contract that is 

properly characterized as a lease for federal income tax purposes is treated as a lease. 

Consequently, any such agreements, even though referred to as a management or service contract 

may nevertheless be treated as a lease. In determining whether a management or service contract 

is properly characterized as a lease, it is necessary to consider all of the facts and circumstances, 

including the following factors: (i) the degree of control over the property that is exercised by a 

nongovernmental person; and (ii) whether a nongovernmental person bears risk of loss of the 

financed or refinanced property. 

 

Short-Term Use Exception. Arrangements fitting within either of the following two exceptions 

will not result in Private Use. 

 

Use Pursuant to Generally Applicable and Uniformly Applied Rates. Use pursuant to an 

arrangement will not result in Private Use if (A) the arrangement does not transfer ownership of 

the property to a nongovernmental person, (B) the term of the use under the arrangement, 

 
4 
Private use alone may cause the Private Business Test limitations to be exceeded in the event that the obligations to 

that financed the privately used property are also secured by property used in a private use. For example, certificates 

of participation in a lease of property that is involved in a private use that finance property that is also used in a private 

business use may become taxable private activity bonds even if the District receives no payments with respect to such 

property. 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 35 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

including all renewal options, is not longer than 100 days, and (C) compensation under the 

arrangement is based on generally applicable and uniformly applied rates. 

 

Use Pursuant to Negotiated Arm’s Length Arrangements. Use pursuant to an arrangement will not 

result in Private Use if (A) the arrangement does not transfer ownership of the property to a 

nongovernmental person, (B) the term of the use under the arrangement, including all renewal 

options, is not longer than 50 days, and (C) the arrangement is a negotiated arm’s-length 

arrangement and compensation under the arrangement is at fair market value. 

 

Construction Contracts and Other Purchases of Capital Assets. A contract with a nongovernmental 

person to construct capital assets or to sell capital assets to the District does not generally result in 

Private Use unless additional services are being provided by the nongovernmental person in 

connection with such contract, e.g., construction management or consulting services. Such services 

with respect to bond financed property must be analyzed for Private Use under Revenue Procedure 

97-13. 

 

Materials and Commodity Supply Contracts. A contract or purchase order for materials, 

commodities, inventory or other supplies from a nongovernmental person does not generally result 

in Private Use unless there are additional services being provided by the nongovernmental person 

in connection with the contracts, e.g., consulting services. Such service arrangements with respect 

to bond financed property must be analyzed for Private Use under Revenue Procedure 97-13. 

 

Ownership of bond financed property. If bond financed property is owned by a nongovernmental 

person, such ownership will be considered Private Use of the asset for purposes of the Private Use 

rules. 

 

Leases of bond financed property. All leases of bond financed property to a nongovernmental 

person constitute Private Use of such property unless an exception for short term use is satisfied. 

 

Nonpossessory Incidental Use. Any non-possessory incidental use such as vending machines, bank 

machines and similar uses may be excluded from the Private Use rules to the extent of 2.5% of an 

issue of Tax-Advantaged Obligations. Such use of bond financed property shall be tracked by Tax 

Compliance Designee. 

 

Joint Ventures, Partnerships or other forms of Joint Ownership. Entry into a joint venture, 

partnership or other form of joint ownership with a nongovernmental person generally gives rise 

to Private Use. Such arrangements with respect to bond financed property must be reviewed by 

bond counsel. 

 

Special Priority Rights or Special Economic Benefits. A contract which conveys special priority 

rights or special economic benefits in bond financed property to a nongovernmental person may 

create Private Use. In determining whether special economic benefit gives rise to Private Use of 

bond financed property, it is necessary to consider all of the facts and circumstances, including 

one or more of the following factors: (a) whether the bond financed property is functionally related 

or physically proximate to property used in the trade or business of a nongovernmental 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 36 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

person; (b) whether only a small number of nongovernmental persons receive the economic 

benefit; and (c) whether the cost of the bond financed property is treated as depreciable by the 

nongovernmental person. Such arrangements with respect to bond financed property must be 

reviewed by bond counsel. 

 

Compilation and Maintenance of Logs Listing Arrangements Potentially Involving Private Trade 

or Business Use. 
 

From time to time, the District enters into the following types of arrangements involving bond 

financed property: 

 

 Use Agreements and Leases with Charter Schools 

 After School Programs 

 Summer Camps 

 Civic Center Leases 

 Naming Rights 

 Other Leases, Licenses or Use Agreements Involving Bond Financed Property 

The arrangements described above will be referred to in this Policy as “Arrangements”. 

The Internal Auditor will retain copies of the Arrangements, and maintain a log listing such 

Arrangements, which shall note with respect to each Arrangement (i) whether such Arrangement 

conforms to the Short-Term Use Exception described above, and (ii) if not, the amount of 

payments to be received by the District and whether such payments exceed the District’s 

incremental costs of operating and maintaining the subject facility arising from the Private Use of 

the subject property. 

 

The Internal Auditor shall also compile and maintain a separate list of each arrangement described 

above that will not qualify for the Short-Term Use Exception and that provides payments to the 

District that will exceed the District’s incremental cost of operating and maintaining the subject 

facility arising from the arrangement (referred to as the “Potential Private Use Contract Log”).
5 

Each item listed in the Private Use Contract Log shall set forth (i) the issue or issues of Tax 

Advantaged Bonds that financed property used in connection with such arrangement, (ii) the 

amount of proceeds of such issue allocable to such property, and (iii) the 

amount of payments expected with respect to such arrangement, net of the incremental costs 

incurred by the District to operate and maintain the facility as a result of such arrangement. 
 

 
 

5 
Arrangements involving property that was financed with proceeds of any of the District’s certificates of participation 

will be listed in the Potential Private Use Contract Log regardless of whether the District is to receive any payments 

under such Arrangements. 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 37 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

The Internal Auditor shall also compile and maintain the following logs: 

 

 Property Disposition Log. The Internal Auditor shall compile and maintain a log 

listing all assets of the District purchased with proceeds of Tax Advantaged 

Obligations that have been sold or otherwise disposed by the District (each, a 

“Disposition”). The log should include with respect to each Disposition, the Issue 

of Tax-Advantaged Bonds that financed the acquisition, construction or renovation 

of such asset and the amount of proceeds of such issue that are allocable to such 

asset (the “Property Disposition Log”). 
 

 Private Loan Log. The Internal Auditor shall compile and maintain a log listing all 

proceeds of each issue of Tax-Advantaged Obligations applied to make loans to 

third parties (the “Private Loan Log”). 
 

The Tax Compliance Designee shall update the respective logs at least annually. 

 

Structuring of Arrangements to Avoid Private Use or Private Payments. It is the Policy of the 

District that to the extent consistent with the business objectives of the District, any potential 

Arrangement which might result in Private Use of bond financed property shall be structured so 

as to avoid or minimize Private Payments. 

 

Dispositions. No transfer, sale or other proposed disposition of bond financed property by the 

District shall take place without the prior review and approval by the General Counsel, after 

consultation with bond counsel. 

 

Remedial Actions. In the event that the District is unable to satisfy the limitations with respect to 

Private Use and Private Payments with respect to any issue of Tax-Advantaged Obligations, the 

Internal Auditor shall consult with the General Counsel, the Chief Business Officer and bond 

counsel and work with bond counsel to effect a remedial actions or take such other actions as shall 

be required to maintain the tax-advantaged status of such bonds. The Internal Auditor shall provide 

any information regarding the bond financed property to effectuate such remedial action to the 

General Counsel and the Chief Business Officer. The Internal Auditor must maintain copies of the 

documentation with respect to the remedial action with the Potential Private Use Contract Log and 

attach such copies to the transcript of closing documents it maintains with respect to each affected 

issue of Tax-Advantaged Obligations. 

 

Periodic Review. Although the District will monitor Private Use of assets financed with Tax- 

Advantaged Obligations and Private Payments relating to such use, the Internal Auditor will no 

less frequently than annually review and update the Potential Private Use Contract Log, the 

Disposition Log the Private Loan Log and the log that it maintains with respect to each issue of 

Tax-Advantaged Obligations. The Internal Auditor shall at least annually prepared a detailed 

calculation of all existing Private Use and Private Payments, if any, that occurred during the prior 

year (the “Private Use Calculation”) with respect to each issue of the District’s Tax- Advantaged 

Obligations. The Potential Private Use Contract Log, the Disposition Log and the Private Use 

calculations are referred to herein as the “Annual Reports.” The Internal Auditor will provide the 

Annual Reports, reflecting activity through the last day of each fiscal year, to the General Counsel 

by November 30th of the following fiscal year. 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 38 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

Arbitrage and Rebate 

 

Section 150 of the Code, the regulations promulgated thereunder and the pronouncement 

relating thereto (the “Arbitrage Rules”) are intended to ensure that issuers, such as the District, are 

issuing Tax-Advantaged Obligations for the primary purpose of financing property needed by the 

District to carry-out its governmental purposes, and not for the purpose of taking advantage  of the 

difference between its tax-advantaged costs of borrowing and its ability, if any, to invest proceeds 

of such obligations in higher yielding obligations. Continuing compliance with the Arbitrage Rules 

primarily involves ensuring that proceeds of Tax-Advantaged Obligations (“Proceeds”) are 

invested in accordance with yield limitations set forth in the Arbitrage Rules, except to the extent 

an exception to such yield limitation cannot be satisfied, and rebating certain investment earnings 

to the United States Treasury. With respect to certain issues of Tax- Advantaged Obligations, the 

District will need to ensure that all proceeds and investment earnings are either expended on 

qualifying projects within specified periods, or portions of such issues are timely redeemed. 

 

Specific post-issuance procedures to effect compliance with the Arbitrage Rules are 

addressed below. However, the procedures set forth herein are not intended to be exhaustive and 

further procedures may need to be identified and implemented, in consultation with the District’s 

staff, bond counsel, tax counsel, if any, and the District’s financial advisors and investment 

advisors. Since proceeds of the District’s bond issues are deposited in a Building Fund 

administered and invested by the Los Angeles County Treasurer and Tax Collector (the “County 

Treasurer”), and the County Treasurer collects and invests moneys to be used to pay debt service 

on the District’s Tax-Advantaged Obligations, the County Treasurer shall also be involved in the 

development and implementation of this Policy insofar as this Policy relates to compliance with 

the Arbitrage Rules. 

 

Procedures Generally – the following policies relate to procedures and systems for monitoring 

post-issuance compliance generally with the Arbitrage Rules. 
 

(i) The Internal Auditor shall be responsible for monitoring the District’s post- issuance 

arbitrage compliance issues. The Chief Business Officer of the District shall be 

responsible for ensuring an adequate succession plan for transferring post-issuance 

arbitrage compliance responsibility when changes in staff occur. 
 

(ii) The Internal Auditor should coordinate procedures for record retention and review in 

accordance with the provisions of this Policy described below. In addition, the Internal 

Auditor shall ensure that adequate records are established and maintained to set forth the 

date, amount and nature of each expenditure of proceeds of each issue of Tax-Advantaged 

Obligations and investment earnings thereon (the “Proceeds”). Such records shall be 

consistent with and may be part of the Issue Expenditure Reports described under 

“Expenditure of Proceeds” above. The Internal Auditor shall also establish and maintain 

a record of each investment of Proceeds, which shall include (i) the purchase date, (ii) the 

purchase price, (iii) information establishing that the purchase price is the fair market 

value as of such date (e.g., the published quoted bid by a dealer in such an investment on 

the date of 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 39 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

purchase), (iv) any accrued interest paid, (v) the face amount, (vi) the coupon rate, (vii) 

periodicity of interest payments, (viii) disposition price, (ix) any accrued interest 

received, and (x) disposition date. To the extent any investment becomes allocable to 

Proceeds after it was originally purchased, it shall be treated as if it were acquired at its 

fair market value at the time it becomes allocable to Proceeds. To the extent Proceeds are 

maintained by the County Treasurer, the Internal Auditor shall advise the County 

Treasurer of the requirement to maintain such records with respect to each investment of 

Proceeds by the County Treasurer, and obtain a copy of such records from the County 

Treasurer at least annually. 
 

(iii) The Internal Auditor should review post-issuance arbitrage compliance procedures and 

systems with bond counsel or tax counsel at least annually. 
 

The following procedures shall be implemented with respect to the issuance of each issue of 

Tax-Advantaged Obligations: 
 

(i) Following the issuance of each issue of Tax Advantaged Obligations, the Internal Auditor 

shall obtain and maintain each of the documents listed above under “Issuance of 

Obligations” including, a fully executed tax certificate with respect to such issue and any 

information reporting forms filed with the Internal Revenue Service with respect to each 

issue, together with proof of filing. A copy of such certificate and information reporting 

forms, together with the Timetable (as defined below), shall be provided to the County 

Treasurer as soon as practicable after the issue date of each issue of Tax-Advantaged 

Obligations. 
 

(ii) The Internal Auditor should confirm that bond counsel has filed with the Internal Revenue 

Service (the “IRS”) the applicable information report (e.g., Form 8038-G, Form 8038 or 

Form 8038-B) for such issue. 
 

(iii) The Internal Auditor should coordinate receipt and retention of relevant books and 

records with respect to the investment and expenditure of the proceeds of such Tax- 

Advantaged Obligations with other members of the District’s staff and staff of the County 

Treasurer. 
 

(iv) A record should be maintained with respect to each issue of Tax-Advantaged Obligations 

containing a schedule setting forth (i) the latest date such proceeds may be invested at an 

unrestricted yield, (ii) the benchmarks that must be satisfied in order to meet an exception 

to the arbitrage rebate rules, (iii) the dates on which any arbitrage rebate computations 

are required to be completed and arbitrage rebate is required to be paid to the United 

States Treasury and (iv) any date by which proceeds are required to either be expended 

or applied to redeem bonds and any other dates on which all or a portion of the Proceeds 

of such issue are required or expected to be expended (the “Timetable”) 
 

Arbitrage – the following procedures should be carried-out from the issue date through the final 

redemption date of each issue of Tax-Advantaged Obligations: 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 40 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY                                                                                  May 2017 

(i) The Internal Auditor should coordinate the tracking of expenditures and any investment 

earnings with other applicable District staff, including staff of the Facilities Division. The 

Internal Auditor should obtain and review at least monthly reports of the expenditure and 

investment of proceeds of each issue of Tax-Advantaged Obligations that are on deposit 

in the District’s Building Fund. The Internal Auditor should maintain a procedure for the 

allocation of proceeds of the issue and investment earnings to expenditures, including the 

reimbursement of pre-issuance expenditures. 
 

(ii) The Internal Auditor should obtain a computation of the yield on each issue of Tax-

Advantaged Obligations from the District’s financial advisor, and obtain from bond 

counselor tax counsel a listing of all arbitrage yield restrictions attributable to Proceeds 

or amounts treated as proceeds of each issue. For example, with respect to each issue of 

qualified school construction bonds, the Internal Auditor should obtain from tax counsel 

or bond counsel the yield limitation with respect to any invested sinking fund established 

for such issue. 
 

(iii) The Internal Auditor should monitor compliance with the applicable “temporary period” 

(as defined in the Code and Treasury Regulations), and expectations for the expenditure 

of proceeds of the issue, and advise the County Treasurer of the need to yield restrict 

investments with respect to proceeds that are not eligible to be invested at an unrestricted 

yield pursuant to a temporary period. 
 

(iv) The Internal Auditor should coordinate with the County Treasurer and the bond trustee, 

if applicable, to ensure that investments acquired with proceeds of each issue of Tax-

Advantaged Obligations are purchased at fair market value. In determining whether an 

investment is purchased at fair market value, any applicable Treasury Regulation safe 

harbor may be used. In the event Proceeds are invested in an investment contract or any 

other investment that is not traded on an established market, and for which fair market 

values are not continually published, the Internal Auditor or County Treasurer shall 

consult with bond counsel or tax counsel to ensure that fair market rules set forth in the 

Treasury Regulations are satisfied. 
 

(v) The Internal Auditor should coordinate with the County Treasurer, the Chief Business 

Officer and the applicable bond trustee to avoid formal or informal creation of funds 

reasonably expected to be used to pay debt service on such issue without determining in 

advance whether such funds must be invested at a restricted yield. 
 

(vi) The Internal Auditor should consult with bond counsel or tax counsel prior to engaging 

in any post-issuance credit enhancement transactions (e.g., bond insurance, letter of 

credit) or hedging transactions (e.g., interest rate swaps, caps). 
 

(vii) The Internal Auditor should coordinate with bond counsel to identify situations in which 

compliance with applicable yield restrictions depends upon later investments and monitor 

implementation of any such restrictions. 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 41 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

(viii) The Internal Auditor should coordinate with the arbitrage rebate consultant, as described 

in (ix) below, to monitor compliance with six-month, 18-month or 2-year spending 

exceptions to the rebate requirement, as applicable. 
 

(ix) The Internal Auditor should coordinate with Chief Business Officer to ensure that the 

District continuously engages a firm nationally recognized in the area of arbitrage rebate 

compliance with respect to each issue of Tax-Advantaged Obligations to arrange, as 

applicable, for timely computation of arbitrage rebate or arbitrage yield reduction liability 

and, if rebate or a yield reduction payment is due to the IRS, for timely filing of Form 

8038-T and, to arrange timely payment of such rebate liability. Such arbitrage rebate 

consultant shall also confirm whether any of the spending exceptions to the arbitrage 

rebate rules are satisfied. The Internal Auditor should ensure that each arbitrage rebate 

consultant is provided with a copy of the Timetable with respect to each issue of Tax-

Advantaged Obligations and that the contract or engagement letter with such arbitrage 

rebate consultant provides for such arbitrage rebate consultant to work with the District 

to refine the Timetable and provide timely notification to the Internal Auditor of each 

deadline set forth in the Timetable. The Internal Auditor shall maintain with its records 

with respect to each issue of Tax-Advantaged Obligations copies of each report submitted 

by any arbitrage rebate consultant and each Form 8038-T filed by the District. 
 

(x) The Internal Auditor should, in the case of any issue of refunding obligations, coordinate 

with the District’s financial advisor, the applicable bond trustee and the applicable escrow 

agent to arrange for the purchase of the refunding escrow securities, should obtain a 

computation of the yield on such escrow securities from the Treasury’s outside arbitrage 

rebate specialist and should monitor compliance with applicable yield restrictions. 

Timetables should be adjusted to reflect the termination of temporary periods, the 

allocation of Proceeds of the refunded bonds as transferred proceeds of the refunding 

bonds and other matters resulting from such refunding. 

 
Retention of Records 

 

Retention of Records. As described above, the District is required to prepare the Annual Reports, 

which summarize and analyze certain underlying documentation related to the Tax-Advantaged 

Obligations. In addition to the requirement to retain the Annual Report, the District will also need 

to retain the related underlying documentation (the “Records”) described below. 

 

Records Required to be Retained. The Records that must be retained include, but are not limited 

to, the following: 

 

(i) All legal and accounting documents relating to proceeds of the Tax-Advantaged 

Obligations, including opinions of counsel and the tax certificate with respect to each 

issue of Tax-Advantaged Obligations. 
 

(ii) Expenditure of Proceeds of Tax-Advantaged Obligations as described below. 



Antelope Valley Community College District 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 42 of 50 

 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

(A) Documents evidencing the expenditure of the proceeds of the Tax-Advantaged 

Obligations and investment earnings thereon and the specific assets financed 

with such proceeds, including projected draw schedules and invoices (e.g., 

records with respect to the bond accounts and funds); 
 

(B) Documents setting forth all funds and accounts relating to the Tax-Advantaged 

Obligations; 
 

(C) Documents pertaining to the investment of the proceeds of the Tax- Advantaged 

Obligations (e.g., records with respect to the bond accounts and funds), 

including the purchase and sale of securities, guaranteed investment contracts, 

and swap/hedge transactions; 
 

(D) With respect to all investments acquired in any fund or account in connection 

with the Tax-Advantaged Obligations, the information set forth under the 

heading “Arbitrage and Rebate” herein; 
 

(iii) Documents evidencing any allocations with respect to the proceeds of the Tax- 

Advantaged Obligations. 
 

(iv) Documents evidencing the use and ownership of the bond financed property, including 

contracts for the use of such property (e.g., the Annual Reports, and the logs described 

herein, and documents evidencing the sale or other disposition of the bond financed 

property. 
 

Required Retention Periods. The District will retain the Records and Reports until the date that is 

six years after the complete retirement of the related Tax-Advantaged Obligations. 

 

Form of Records. The District will keep all records in a manner that ensures complete access 

thereto for the applicable above described period either in hard copy or electronic format. If the 

records are kept in electronic format, compliance is necessary with the requirements of Revenue 

Procedure 97-22, 1997-1 C.B. 652, (or subsequent guidance provided by the Internal Revenue 

Service), which provides guidance for maintaining books and records by using an electronic 

storage system that either images their hardcopy books and records or transfers their computerized 

books and records to an electronic storage media (e.g., an electronic data compression system). 

 

Failure to Retain Records. A failure to maintain material records required to be retained by this 

Section may result in the loss of the tax status of the Tax-Advantaged Obligations and could cause 

additional arbitrage rebate to be owed. 

 
Reissuance 

 

The following policies relate to compliance with rules and regulations regarding reissuance of 

Tax-Advantaged Obligations issued by the District: 



Page 43 of 50 

Antelope Valley Community College District 
 

 

 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY          May 2017 

 

 

The CBO and the Internal Auditor in conjunction with the General Counsel are to 

(a) identify and consult with bond counsel regarding any post- issuance change to 

any terms of an issue of Tax-Advantaged Obligations, (b) request bond counsel to 

determine whether such potential change would cause the issue to be treated as 

“reissued” for federal income tax purposes, and (c) confirm with bond counsel 

whether any “remedial action” in connection with a “change in use” (as such terms 

are defined in the Code and Treasury Regulations) must be treated as a reissuance 

for tax purposes. 

 
 

Training 
 

The District shall engage its bond counsel, special tax counsel or another resource such as the 

California Debt & Management Investment Advisory Commission (CDIAC), to attend a seminar 

at least annually, which shall be attended by the Internal Auditor, representatives of the Chief 

Business Officer, the General Counsel and any other staff members from each office of the District 

responsible for the expenditure of proceeds of the District’s Tax- Advantaged Obligations. The 

County Treasurer and members of the Bond Oversight Committee should also be invited to 

participate in such seminar. Such seminar shall include a review of the District’s compliance 

initiatives during the prior twelve-month period, discussions relating to restrictions on the use of 

proceeds of Tax-Advantaged Bonds, arbitrage requirements and recent developments in such 

areas. 



Page 44 of 50 

Antelope Valley Community College District 
 

 

 

 

APPENDIX C 

 

ANTELOPE VALLEY COMMUNITY 

COLLEGE CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

PROCEDURES 

I. INTRODUCTION 

 

A. Purpose 
 

These continuing disclosure procedures (“Continuing Disclosure Procedures” or 

“Procedures”) of the Antelope Valley Community College District (the “District”) 

are intended to (a) ensure that the District’s Continuing Disclosure Documents (as 

defined below) are accurate and comply with all applicable federal and state 

securities laws, and (b) promote best practices regarding the preparation of the 

District’s Continuing Disclosure Documents. 
 

B. Definitions 
 

1. “Continuing Disclosure Documents” means (a) annual continuing 

disclosure reports filed with the MSRB and (b) event notices and any other 

filings with the MSRB. 
 

2. “Official Statements” means preliminary and final official statements, 

private placement memoranda and remarketing memoranda relating to the 

District’s securities, together with any supplements, for which a continuing 

disclosure obligation is required. 
 

II. KEY PARTICIPANTS 
 

A. Disclosure Practices Working Group 
 

1. Composition. The Disclosure Practices Working Group (the “Disclosure 

Working Group”) has been created by the Chief Business Officer (“CBO) 

to have general oversight over the entire continuing disclosure process. 

Membership in the Disclosure Working Group shall be appointed by the 

CBO and consist of persons relevant to the disclosure process. The 

following persons currently constitute the Disclosure Working Group. 
 

a. Chief Business Officer; 
 

b. Internal Auditor (Compliance Officer); 



Page 45 of 50 

Antelope Valley Community College District 
 

 

c. Disclosure Counsel 

 

d. Any other individuals appointed by the CBO. 
 

2. The Disclosure Working Group shall consult with external professionals 

(such as those with expertise as bond counsel, tax counsel, disclosure 

counsel, and financial advisor) or other interested parties as the CBO or any 

other member of the Disclosure Working Group determine is advisable 

related to continuing disclosure issues and practices. Meetings of the 

Disclosure Working Group may be held in person or via conference call. 
 

3. The Disclosure Working Group is an internal working group of the District 

staff (with the exception of Disclosure Counsel) and not a decision-making 

or advisory body subject to the provisions of the Ralph 

M. Brown Act (Government Code Section 54950 et seq.) 
 

4. Responsibilities. The Disclosure Working Group is responsible for: 
 

a. Reviewing and approving all Continuing Disclosure Documents as 

contained in the District’s Preliminary and Final Official Statements 

before such documents are posted; 
 

b. Reviewing annually the District’s status and compliance with 

continuing disclosure obligations including filings of Annual 

Reports and Notices of Listed Events as described in Sections 

III.B. and III.C. below; 
 

c. Reviewing any items referred to the Disclosure Working Group; and 
 

d. Evaluating the effectiveness of these Continuing Disclosure 

Procedures and approving changes to these Continuing Disclosure 

Procedures. 
 

B. Internal Auditor (Compliance Officer) 
 

1. Appointment. The District Internal Auditor shall be the Compliance 

Officer. 
 

2. Responsibilities. The Internal Auditor is responsible for: 

a. Approving the Continuing Disclosure Documents, Listed Event 

Notices, and Voluntary Filings. 
 

b. Preparing and filing the Continuing Disclosure Documents and 

seeking assistance from professionals in the financial advisory and 

bond, tax, and disclosure counsel pools, as necessary; 
 

c. Serving as a “point person” to communicate issues or information 

that should be or may need to be included in any Continuing 

Disclosure Document or a specific filing of, for example, a Listed 

Event Notice or a Voluntary Filing; 
 



Page 46 of 50 

Antelope Valley Community College District 
 

 

d. Monitoring compliance by the District with these Continuing 

Disclosure Procedures, including timely dissemination of the annual 

report and event filings as described in Sections III.B.    and 

C. below; 
 

e. Recommending changes to these Continuing Disclosure Procedures 

to the Disclosure Working Group as necessary or appropriate; 
 

f. Following up with others, including management of outside 

consultants assisting the District, in the preparation and 

dissemination of Continuing Disclosure Documents to make sure 

that assigned tasks have been completed on a timely basis and 

making sure that the filings are made on a timely basis and are 

accurate; 
 

g. Together with the CBO, coordinating the timely provision of 

information to Disclosure Counsel as needed to fulfill its 

responsibilities to the District; 
 

h. In anticipation of preparing Continuing Disclosure Documents, 

soliciting “material” information (as defined in Securities and 

Exchange Commission Rule 10b-5) from District units; 
 

i. Maintaining records documenting the District’s compliance with 

these Continuing Disclosure Procedures; and 

 

j. Reviewing compliance with and providing appropriate certifications 

in connection with the various covenants in bond, COPs, and 

TRANs documents. The Internal Auditor shall review the bond 

documents to determine which covenants require an annual or 

regular certification and maintain a list of the same. 
 

k. Monitoring the websites and subscribing to the communications 

(e.g., news alerts, press releases, etc.) of each Rating Agency and 

Bond Insurer (defined herein) in order to be aware of any rating 

change as described in each Continuing Disclosure Document. 
 

III. CONTINUING DISCLOSURE FILINGS 
 

A. Overview of Continuing Disclosure Filings 
 

1. Under the continuing disclosure undertakings it has entered into in 

connection with its debt offerings, the District is required to file annual 

reports (“Annual Reports”) with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking 

Board’s (“MSRB”) Electronic Municipal Market Access (“EMMA”) 

system in accordance with such agreements in each year. Such Annual 

Reports are required to include the District’s audited financial statements 

and certain updated financial and operating information (or may incorporate 

by reference publically-available documents that contain such information). 
 



Page 47 of 50 

Antelope Valley Community College District 
 

 

2. In accordance with each Continuing Disclosure Documents, if audited 

financial statements are not available by the date the Annual Report is 

required to be filed, unaudited financial statements are to be included in 

such Annual Report and audited financial statements shall be filed when 

such statements become available. If unaudited financial statements are 

filed, the cover page may include a disclaimer stating that such financial 

statements are unaudited and are subject to adjustments and modifications, 

the result of which will be presented in the audited financial statements. In 

addition, in accordance with the applicable Continuing Disclosure 

Document, the District shall file or cause to be filed a notice of any failure 

to provide its Annual Report on or before the date specified in a Continuing 

Disclosure Document. 
 

3. The District is also required under its continuing disclosure obligations to 

file notices of certain events on EMMA. 
 

B. Annual Reports 
 

The Internal Auditor shall ensure that the preparation of the District’s 

Annual Reports shall commence as required under each specific continuing 

disclosure obligation. Before any annual report is submitted to EMMA, the 

Disclosure  Coordinator  shall  confer  with  the    Disclosure 



Page 48 of 50 

Antelope Valley Community College District 
 

 

Working Group as needed regarding the content and accuracy of any 

Annual Report. 
 

C. Event Filings 
 

Each member of the Disclosure Working Group shall notify the other 

members of the Disclosure Working Group if he or she becomes aware of 

any of the material events listed in any of the District’s continuing 

disclosure certificates. The Disclosure Working Group may meet to discuss 

the event and to determine, in consultation with counsel from the bond, tax, 

and disclosure counsel pool to the extent determined by the Internal Auditor 

and the CBO, whether a filing is required or is otherwise desirable. 
 

D. Paying Agent, Bond Insurer, and Rating Agency Filings 
 

1. The Internal Auditor shall submit to each issuer of a financial guaranty 

insurance or municipal bond insurance policy guaranteeing the scheduled 

payment of principal of and interest on an outstanding issue of bonds when 

due (a “Bond Insurer”), paying agent and trustee such annual or interim 

financial information and other information as it may request in accordance 

with the respective agreements with the District. 
 

2. Each member of the Disclosure Working Group shall notify the other 

members of the Disclosure Working Group if he or she becomes aware of 

any of the events for which Moody’s Investor’s Service, Standard & Poor’s 

Rating Services, a Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC business or 

any other such rating agency then-rating the District’s bonds (each, a 

“Rating Agency”), any Bond Insurer, paying agent or trustee of the 

District’s bonds requires notice. The Disclosure Working Group may meet 

to discuss the event and to determine, in consultation with counsel from the 

bond, tax, and disclosure counsel pool to the extent determined by the 

Internal Auditor and the CBO, whether a filing is required or is otherwise 

desirable. 
 

3. The Internal Auditor shall submit to each such Rating Agency such financial 

and other information it may request to obtain or maintain a rating on the 

Bonds 
 

E. Uncertainty 
 

The CBO may direct questions regarding the Procedures or disclosure to 

counsel from the bond, tax and disclosure counsel pool, the Office of 

General Counsel, or such other counsel or consultant as he/she deems 

appropriate. 
 

F. Voluntary Disclosures 



Page 49 of 50 

Antelope Valley Community College District 
 

 

The District’s policy is to only file annual financial information and 

operating data and listed event notices that are required under the 

Continuing Disclosure Documents and applicable federal securities laws. 

The Internal Auditor may determine to file voluntary disclosure information 

that is not required under the Continuing Disclosure Documents. 
 

IV. DOCUMENTS TO BE RETAINED 
 

The Internal Auditor shall be responsible for maintaining records demonstrating 

compliance with these Continuing Disclosure Procedures. The Internal Auditor 

shall retain an electronic or paper file (“Disclosure File”) for each Annual Report 

that the District files or causes to be filed on EMMA.  Each Disclosure File shall 

include final versions of the Continuing Disclosure Documents; written 

confirmations, certifications, letters and legal opinions described herein; copies of 

these Continuing Disclosure Procedures and a list of individuals to whom they have 

been distributed and the dates of such distributions; and a written record of the dates 

of meetings and/or conference calls of the Disclosure Working Group. The 

Disclosure File shall be maintained in a central depository for a period of five years 

from the later of the date of delivery of the securities referenced in the Continuing 

Disclosure Document, or the date the Continuing Disclosure Document is 

published, posted, or otherwise made publically available, as applicable. 
 

V. EDUCATION 
 

A. The CBO shall ensure that the Internal Auditor and the Disclosure Working Group 

are properly trained to understand and perform their responsibilities. Such training 

may include training sessions conducted by consultants with expertise in municipal 

securities law, municipal securities compliance and disclosure or by attendance at 

conferences, or other appropriate methods identified by the CBO. 
 

B. The District shall engage a law firm of nationally recognized standing in matters 

pertaining to the federal securities laws (“Disclosure Counsel”) its disclosure 

counsel to provide a seminar at least annually, which shall be attended by the 

Internal Auditor, representatives of the Chief Business Officer and the General 

Counsel, and members of the District’s Board of Trustees. Members of the Bond 

Oversight Committee should also be invited to participate in such seminar. Such 

seminar shall include a review of the District’s disclosure compliance initiatives 

during the prior twelve-month period. 
 

VI. AMENDMENTS 
 

Other than timely meeting the requirements of its Continuing Disclosure 

Documents continuing disclosure certificates, any provisions of these Continuing 



Page 50 of 50 

Antelope Valley Community College District 
 

 

Disclosure Procedures may be waived or amended at any time upon consultation 

with the CBO. 



To:  Officers and Members of the Academic Senate 
From:  Dr. Jessica Harper 
 
Re: Position of Academic Senate Second Executive Officer 
 
 
Dear Colleagues,          4 May 2017 
 
The opportunity that was afforded me last year to serve as the Second Executive Officer for the 
Academic Senate was an excellent learning experience.  It also opened my eyes to how much more 
there is to learn and contribute.   
 
I appeal to you to elect me to a second term in this position for the sake of continuity and the prospect 
of contributing to the Academic Senate in this capacity. 
 
 
 
 
Thank you for your consideration, 
Jessica  
 



Antelope Valley College | Academic Policies and Procedures (AP&P) Committee 1 of 1 
 

ANTELOPE VALLEY COLLEGE 
Academic Affairs Office 

 
To: Academic Senate 
 
From: Dr. Darcy Wiewall, AP&P Cochair 
 
Date: May 1, 2017 
 
Subject: AP&P Committee Recommendations for Academic Senate Approval 
 
 
The following items were reviewed and approved by the Academic Policies and Procedures (AP&P) Committee: 

 
Items Approved by AP&P:  
1. Distance Education Course Form 
2. Credit by Exam list 
3. Corporate Community Education Process Revision 
 
New Corporate Community Education Courses Approved by AP&P:  
1. Online Food Safety Exam 
2. Bird of Prey of the AV 
3. Managing Culture Div in Workplace 
4. The Art of Effective Negotiation 
5. AVSOMC String Academy 
6. An Introduction to Voiceovers 
 
New Courses Approved by AP&P:  
1. THA 104, Introduction to Stage Costume; 3 units / 90 hours total 

Description: Students will study costume history, design, and basic construction techniques as an introduction to 
basic theatrical costuming. Fabrics and their various uses will be investigated. (CSU, AVC)  
 

Revised Courses Approved by AP&P:  
1. ENGL 100A, Academic Strategies 
2. DM 106L, Video Design and Production I Lab 
3. LIB 101, Introduction to Academic Library Research 
4. OT 101, Beginning Computer Keyboarding 
5. OT 101 Hybrid and Online, Beginning Computer Keyboarding 
6. OT 102, Intermediate Computer Keyboarding 
7. OT 102 Hybrid and Online, Intermediate Computer Keyboarding 
8. OT 103, Advanced Computer Keyboarding 
9. OT 103 Hybrid and Online, Advanced Computer Keyboarding 
10. OT 113, Advanced Microsoft Word 
11. OT 113 Hybrid and Online, Advanced Microsoft Word 

 
Course Deactivations Approved by AP&P:  
1. NS 110, Professional Nursing I 
2. NS 111, Fundamentals of Nursing Science 
3. NS 120, Professional Nursing II 
4. NS 121, Obstetrical, Neonatal and Women’s Health Nursing 
5. NS 122, Medical/Surgical Nursing I 
6. NS 200, Nursing Transition 
7. NS 230, Professional Nursing III 
8. NS 231, Pediatric/Community Health Nursing 
9. NS 232, Psychiatric/Geriatric/Community Health Nursing 

 
Program Revisions Approved by AP&P:  
1. AA-T in Theatre Arts 



Antelope Valley College | Academic Policies and Procedures (AP&P) Committee 1 of 1 
 

ANTELOPE VALLEY COLLEGE 
Academic Affairs Office 

 
To: Academic Senate 
 
From: Academic Policies and Procedures Committee 
 Darcy Wiewall, AP&P Cochair 
 
Date: May 9, 2017 
 
Subject: BUS 201 Instructor Minimum Qualifications 
 
 
In an effort to appropriately identify qualified faculty members to teach BUS 201, we are requesting that this 
course be on the discipline list for BUSINESS and LAW, allowing either of the minimum qualifications below to 
be applied in the hiring process:  

 
Business 
Master’s in business, business management, business 
administration, accountancy, finance, marketing or 
business education 
OR 
Bachelor’s in any of the above 
AND 
Master’s in economics, personnel management, public 
administration, or JD or LL.B. degree 
OR 
Bachelor’s in economics with a business emphasis 
AND 
Master’s in personnel management, public 
administration, or JD or LL.B. degree 
OR the equivalent. 
 
 
LAW 
JD or LL.B. 
 
 
The discipline faculty, department chair and dean approve the use of the Law minimum qualification for BUS 
201 only. 



Edit this form



Powered by This form was created inside of Antelope Valley College.

Report Abuse - Terms of Service - Additional Terms

Submit

Never submit passwords through Google Forms.



Academic Policies & Procedures (AP&P) Chairs/Co-Chairs: 
Dr. Darcy L. Wiewall 
Dr. Bonnie Suderman 

 

Annual Report 
2016/17 

 
List Committee Goals for 2016/17 

I.  Approve the 242 courses needing review and revision as per Title 5 requirements during 
2016 fall semester in order to remain in good standing and inclusion in the 2017-2018 
catalog. 

II.  Revised the AP&P Committee Structure based on the new Division Structure of the College. 
III.  Continue to develop new ADT programs. 
IV.  Review and Revise the Corporate Community Education Process. 
V.  Revise the Distance Education form.  
VI.  Develop a Checklist for AP&P committee members when reviewing course/program submissions in 

CurricUNET. 
VII.  Review, revise and approve the Credit by Exam list. 
VIII.  Review and revise the 2015-2016 Discipline List (Title 5: 53400-53430) 

Describe accomplishments made to meet your committee goals: 
I. The goal was surpassed. The committee approved 319 revised courses, 10 new courses, 48 

DE courses, and 19 deactivations. We approved two new programs and revised 11 programs 
and 10 new Corporate Community education courses.  

II. Revised and approved the AP&P Committee Structure based on the new Division Structure of the 
College. 

III. Approved two new ADT programs: Biology and Chemistry. 
IV. Revised and approved the Corporate Community Education Process. 
V. Revised and approved the Distance Education form. 
VI. Completed a checklist for AP&P committee members when reviewing course/program submissions in 

CurricUNET. 
VII. Completed and approved the Credit by Exam list. 
VIII. Revised the 2015-2016 Discipline List (Title 5: 53400-53430). 

What did your committee accomplish to further the College Mission? 
Mission:  The Academic Policies & Procedures Committee (AP&P) is a standing committee of the Academic 

Senate. Its main responsibility is to oversee the development, review, renewal, and recommendation 
of curriculum to be approved by the Board of Trustees (Title 5: 55002). Curriculum review and 
development necessarily reflect the collegial decision to meet student needs for course work that is 
encompassed within basic skills, general education, transfer, and major programs of study, which 
include a wide array of occupational and liberal arts disciplines and areas. In addition, the process for 
establishing prerequisites, co-requisites, advisories, and limitations on enrollment falls under the 
purview of the curriculum committee (Title 5: 53200-2040). 

 
Accomplishments: 
The committee contributed accomplished a number of goals to further the College Mission. First, reviewing, 
revising & approving the courses/programs that had to be revised as per Title 5 requirements in order to 
remain in good standing for the 2017-2018 College catalog. We contributed to the development of Associate 
Degrees and transfer/general education courses by approving two new Associate Degrees for Transfer 



Programs (ADT) in Biology & Chemistry. We also revised the Credit by Exam list to further assist students in 
their educational goals. The new ENGL 100A Basic Skills course will provide students with essential foundation 
skills that are necessary for success in college-level degree applicable English courses. Furthermore, we revised 
the Corporate Community Education procedures and added more community service offerings to allow 
members of the community to develop the knowledge, skills and attitudes necessary to be effective members 
of the community. Lastly, we revised the Discipline List verifying the courses currently offered are listed in their 
respect discipline areas with the statewide requisite minimum qualifications for persons qualified to teach in 
each discipline area.  
 
 
What did your committee accomplish to further the 2016/17 College Goals? 
     Goal 1:  Commitment to strengthen Institutional Effectiveness measures and practices. 
     Accomplishments:  
 Revised the AP&P Committee Structure based on the new Division Structure of the College. 
 Continued to offer CurricUNET workshops with AP&P Faculty Representatives making themselves 

available to assist faculty with course/program revisions and developments. 
 Revised and approved the Corporate Community Education Process. 
 Revised and approved the Distance Education form. 
 Completed a checklist for AP&P committee members when reviewing course/program submissions in 

CurricUNET. 
 
     Goal 2:  Focus on utilizing proven instructional strategies that will foster transferable intellectual skills. 
     Accomplishments: 
 Approved two new ADT programs: Biology and Chemistry. 
 Completed and approved the Credit by Exam list. 
 Revised and approved the Distance Education form. 
 Revised and approved the Corporate Community Education Process. 

 
   Goal 3:  Advance more students to college-level coursework. 
 
   Accomplishments:   
 Approved the new ENGL 100A Basic Skills course. 
 Revised the 2015-2016 Discipline List (Title 5: 53400-53430). 

 
What issues do you foresee your committee working through in the upcoming year? 
We are planning on completing a SWOT analysis of the committee at the first meeting of the Fall. This will be 
used to guide the committee goals we wish to accomplish in 2017-2018. 
 
  Recommendations for change in membership or function: 
 
NONE 
 



Accreditation Chairs/Co-Chairs: Mike 
Pesses, Tina McDermott 

 

Annual Report 
2016/17 

 
List Committee Goals for 2016/17 

I.  Transfer position to new faculty chair 
II.  Begin to address ACCJC recommendations for next accreditation report. 
III.   
IV.   

Describe accomplishments made to meet your committee goals: 
     I. Mike Pesses selected as new co-chair 
     II. Meetings were held with relevant campus groups (Outcomes Committee, Distance Education 

and Technology Committee, Library, etc.) to deconstruct the wording of ACCJC’s 
recommendations to begin to move forward in addressing those recommendations. 

     III. Google Drive folders have been created to store and share evidence showing proof of 
addressing the recommendations.  

     IV.  
What did your committee accomplish to further the College Mission? 
Mission: “Antelope Valley College, a public institution of higher education, provides a quality, comprehensive 

education to a diverse population of learners. We are committed to student success offering value 
and opportunity, in service to our community” 

 
 
Accomplishments: Our work during the 2016-17 school year was done to ensure that AVC can maintain 
accreditation to continue to provide “a quality, comprehensive education to a diverse population of learners.” 

What did your committee accomplish to further the 2016/17 College Goals? 
     Goal 1:  Long Term Goals 2017-2022 – Complete a second accreditation cycle with full reaffirmation and no 
sanctions. 
 
     Accomplishments: In meeting with the various faculty and staff members directly responsible for 
accomplishing the recommendations, the accreditation co-chairs have begun the process to ensure that the 
2020 midterm report will not be deficient in any way. 
 
 
     Goal 2:   
 
     Accomplishments: 
 
 
   Goal 3:   
 
   Accomplishments:   
 



 
What issues do you foresee your committee working through in the upcoming year? 
We will continue meeting and checking in with the six groups tasked with addressing the ACCJC 
recommendations. Plans were put into place this semester and progress will be assessed in the upcoming year. 
The recommendations can be found here: 
https://www.avc.edu/sites/default/files/accreditation/AccreditationSiteVisitEvaluationReport.pdf  
 
  Recommendations for change in membership or function: 
No changes are needed at this point.  
 
 

https://www.avc.edu/sites/default/files/accreditation/AccreditationSiteVisitEvaluationReport.pdf


Distance Education and 
Technology Committee (DETC) 

Chairs/Co-Chairs: 
Perry Jehlicka 
Dr. Peter Chege 

 

Annual Report 
2016/17 

 
List Committee Goals for 2016/17 

I.  Develop a faculty mentorship program that educates faculty in the principles of instructional 
design in order to enhance the quality of online courses. 

II.  Provide the faculty with support to facilitate a smooth transition from Blackboard to Canvas. 
III.  Recommend a minimum training standard for online instruction to the Faculty Senate. 
IV.   

Describe accomplishments made to meet your committee goals: 
     I. The mentor program is designed as an open lab for faculty.  We will have scheduled available 

hours in computer labs where mentors will be available to help in one on one and small 
groups with Canvas set up and design.   

     II. ITS has provided training all school year for faculty as they prepare for the switch to Canvas.  
Dr. Ed Beyer also but on a Blackboard to Canvas workshop with the emphasis being on design 
and pedagogy delivery for faculty.  

     III. We did not meet this goal this year.  With the mentor program this will be one of the first 
items we work on in the fall.  The mentor program will help this goal become a reality. 

     IV.  
What did your committee accomplish to further the College Mission? 
Mission:   
The Distance Education and Technology Committee is charged with developing guidelines for the delivery of 

distance education that will maximize student opportunities for success. The committee makes 
recommendations to the Academic Senate on issues related to distance education, examines distance 
education practices for the purpose of developing best practice guidelines, and acts as a resource for 
technical matters related to academic computing. 

The Distance Education and Technology Committee's mission is two-fold: first, to assist in the planning and 
implementation of the Technology Medicated Instruction (TMI) used by instructors and staff in the preparation 
of educational materials; and second, to provide guidance and recommendation in the pedagogical 
development and technology in both traditional and distance education. 

• Reviews new and revised Distance Education courses as part of the AP&P course approval process 
• Address problems with academic computing, including course management system 
• Selects the course management system for the College 
• Works closely with the Academic Senate and IT Committee 

 
 
 



Accomplishments: 
DETC last year recommended to the faculty senate that we move to Canvas as the campus LMS.  With the 
change over the past year ITS has provided technical training for faculty throughout the school year.  We 
developed a faculty mentor program to not only help with course design in Canvas, but we believe will help 
improve the success rate of our online courses.  The mentor program will also help build a recommended 
standard of training for online faculty.   
What did your committee accomplish to further the 2016/17 College Goals? 
     Goal 1:  Commitment to strengthen Institutional Effectiveness measures and Increase efficient and effective 
use of all resources: Technology, Facilities, Human Resources, Business Services 
 
     Accomplishments: 
Moving to Canvas as the campus LMS gives the campus a tool that meets the needs of both faculty and 
students moving forward in distance education classes.  The technology in Canvas should give the campus a 
platform to help improve the success rate for our distance education classes.  The technology is extremely 
mobile friendly and has updates technology for regular and effective contact between faculty and students.    
 
     Goal 2:  Focus on utilizing proven instructional strategies that will foster transferable intellectual skills and 

advance more students to college-level coursework. 
 
     Accomplishments: 
Canvas becoming the LMS should provide a platform that will help to close the gap between success of classroom courses 
and distance education courses.  A higher success rate for students in distance education classes moves more students 
along in their educational plan and goals.  The starting of an online mentor program should also help improve course 
design and delivery of the distance education course. 
 
   Goal 3:  Align instructional programs to the skills identified by the labor market 
  
 
 
   Accomplishments:   
Not Applicable 
 
What issues do you foresee your committee working through in the upcoming year? 
Recommending a standard of training for online instruction.  Going live in the Online Educational Initiative (OEI) 
class exchange.   Having a clear understanding of language as it pertains to both evaluating online classes and 
virtual office hours for instructors.  Qualifications needed for evaluating online courses.    
 
  Recommendations for change in membership or function: 
 
None at this time 
 



Faculty Professional Development Chairs/Co-Chairs: 
Kristine Oliveira and  
Dr Bonnie Suderman 

 

Annual Report 
2016/17 

 
List Committee Goals for 2016/17 

I.  Develop procedures to ensure ADA and Ed Code compliance for access for the Deaf and hard 
of hearing at our Faculty Professional Development events. 

II.  Develop a plan to meet ACCJC requirements for reporting the success of our FPD Program. 
III.  Develop a Faculty Mentorship Program. 
IV.  Compile and publish a Senate Committee and College Organization Meetings At-A-Glance. 

Describe accomplishments made to meet your committee goals: 
     I. Conducted 9 ethnographic interviews with key informants, compiled and sorted the data, 

and passed the qualitative data to the college management, Academic Senate, and the 
faculty union; created a required statement in the FPD Proposal system that all FPD events 
are to be made accessible for the Deaf and hard of hearing for the following academic year. 

     II. Considered a university model evaluation for faculty professional development events and an 
evaluation model for the overall program; debated but could not come to a consensus on the 
events evaluation. After multiple revision cycles for the program evaluation, the committee 
agreed upon a program evaluation that will be launched as an anonymous SurveyMonkey, 
embedded into the FPD Self-Report section of the FPD Contract in May 2017; three reflective 
questions will be integrated into the Self-Report section in 2017-2018 FPD Contract. 

     III. Considered multiple faculty mentorship forms from community colleges in California, and 
then tailored our program from the models of Cerritos College and College of the Canyons. 
Developed three programs—fall, spring, and one year—for 10 hours per semester, 20 hours 
for the full year, both for Standard 2 FPD credit. Developed intake forms, Mentorship Plan 
form, Mid-term Update form, Mentorship Report form, and agreed upon a celebratory 
breakfast for participants to share their accomplishments in the Spring. The Faculty 
Mentorship Program will launch in fall 2017. 

     IV. Compiled a calendar of regularly scheduled meetings across the district, including 
Division/Area meetings, committee meetings, and council meetings. The FPD Committee will 
maintain the Meetings Calendar and will communicate changes in meeting times between 
college groups and ITS. 

What did your committee accomplish to further the College Mission? 
Mission:   
“Antelope Valley College, a public institution of higher education, provides a quality, comprehensive education 
to a diverse population of learners. We are committed to student success offering value and opportunity, in 
service to our community.” 
 
Accomplishments: 
The work of the FPD Committee contributed to the effort for greater equity for our colleagues who are Deaf 
and hard of hearing, which will result in improved collegiality and in wider access and opportunity for our 
students. The Program Evaluation will support transparency and trust within the local AVC community and with 
the accrediting body. The Mentorship Program will help to build stronger institutional memory, improving the 
quality of education by closing information gaps and in building knowledge through collaboration. The 



Meetings Calendar also contributes to the spirit of transparency in participatory governance, enabling the 
community to know when and where groups meet to discuss college business.  

What did your committee accomplish to further the 2016/17 College Goals? 
     Goal 1:   
Commitment to strengthen effectiveness measures and practices. 
     Accomplishments: 
The launch of the FPD Program Evaluation in the Spring 2017 increases tools for measuring effectiveness of the 
Faculty Professional Development program. 
 
     Goal 2:   
Increase efficient and effective use of all resources (technology, facilities, human resources, business services). 
     Accomplishments: 
The FPD Program increases effectiveness of teaching through the development of the Mentorship Program. 
The Meeting Calendar increases efficiency by bringing greater transparency to the working groups on campus. 
The college’s strong investment in faculty professional development illustrates a commitment to the quality of 
instruction of our students. 
 
   Goal 3:   
Focus on utilizing proven instructional strategies that will foster transferable intellectual skills. 
   Accomplishments:   
The Committee produced a varied program of professional development that offered faculty the opportunity to 
participate in and to present FPD events, to encourage engagement with college committees and student 
clubs, and to expand their pedagogical expertise in response to the changing needs of our community. 
 
What issues do you foresee your committee working through in the upcoming year? 
Next year, the Committee will be piloting the Mentorship Program, and so we will be monitoring the 
effectiveness of the new program and looking for ways to improve it. The Committee is ready to support 
college leadership’s efforts to support the needs of faculty presenters to make their FPD materials accessible 
for the Deaf and hard of hearing, and as those support structures are new, it is possible that the Committee will 
play a role in supporting the new structures put into place. 
 
  Recommendations for change in membership or function: 
None. 
 
 



Honors  John Vento 

 

Annual Report 
2016/17 

 
List Committee Goals for 2016/17 

I.  Increase student membership to 500 
II.  Increase counselors from one to four 
III.  Increase the number of students finishing the program from 84 to 90 
IV.  Create an online honor option In progress: Meet with Rich Shaw and Steven Burns to develop 

an online honors option contract 
Describe accomplishments made to meet your committee goals: 
     I. Membership goal met: 540 5/11/17 (LAST YEAR: 450)  
     II. Counselor goal met: Susan Knapp, Cynthia Wishka, Rosa Fuller and Tamira Palemeto Despain 

are meeting with honor student year round 
     III. 98 students completed six or more honors classes and are transferring or graduating in 2017.  
     IV. In progress: Meet with Rich Shaw and Steven Burns to develop an online honors option (fall 

2017) 
What did your committee accomplish to further the College Mission? 
Mission:   
Antelope Valley College, a public institution of higher education, provides a quality, 
comprehensive education to a diverse population of learners. We are committed to student 
success offering value and opportunity, in service to our community 
 
Accomplishments: For 2016-2017, the Honors program increased the number of honor students in the 
program, the number of counselors serving honor students and the number of students finishing the honors 
program.  

What did your committee accomplish to further the 2016/17 College Goals? 
     Goal 1 and 2:  Commitment to strengthen Institutional Effectiveness measures and Increase efficient and effective use 
of all resources: Technology, Facilities, Human Resources, Business Service 
 
     Accomplishments: 
Increased the number of counselors serving the honor students.  
The IT Department is developing on an online honors option contract (fall 2017)  
 
     Goal 3 and 4:  Focus on utilizing proven instructional strategies that will foster transferable intellectual skills and 

advance more students to college-level coursework. 
 
     Accomplishments: 
From 2016 to the present, we increased the number of students from 450 to 540 and increased the number students 
from 84 to 98. 
 
    
What issues do you foresee your committee working through in the upcoming year? 

• Clerical support: the size of the program (500 students) needs more support to assist with the various 



task to help the students; -especially the honors convocation.  
• Developing an online honors option contract 
• Increase the number of Language faculty offering honors option (there are only two: French and Latin) 

 
  Recommendations for change in membership or function: 

• Clerical support is needed  
 
 



Outcomes Chairs/Co-Chairs: Dr. Glenn 
Haller; Dr. Meeta Goel 

 

Annual Report 
2016/17 

 
List Committee Goals for 2016/17 

I.  Maintain SLO reporting in the high 90s. 
II.  Get and maintain PLO reporting into the 90s. 
III.  Finish mapping of SLOs to PLOS and PLOs to ILOs. 
IV.  Finalize a determination of using WEAVE in the future, or have a replacement identified. 
V.  Identify areas and methodologies for assessing the validity of current SLOs and PLOs and 

their creation.  
VI.  Establish a procedure for having SLO data turned in with grades. 
VII.  Define Outcomes Committee role in Operation Outcomes. 

Describe accomplishments made to meet your committee goals: 
     I. SLO data reporting is currently at 93 percent 
     II. PLO data reporting is incomplete  
     III. Current mapping is at approximately 63 percent, must get to 100 percent with new 

Operations Management System 
     IV. Sub committee has recommended eLumen to replace WEAVE.  Approved by Committee, still 

pending in Senate. 
V. Goal tabled pending new Operations Management System 
VI. Work flow currently being worked on in conjunction with implementing new Operations 

Management System 
VII. Internal reorganization, approved by the Senate allows Operations and Learning Outcomes to 

act autonomously from full committee in their particular, desperate areas. 
What did your committee accomplish to further the College Mission? 
Mission:  Antelope Valley College, a public institution of higher education, provides a quality, comprehensive 

education to a diverse population of learners. We are committed to student success offering value 
and opportunity, in service to our community. 

 
 
Accomplishments: By working in advancement of the Committee’s and Academic Senate’s mission and goals, 
the Outcomes Committee furthered the ability for our students to have a quality, comprehensive education as 
well as student success. 

What did your committee accomplish to further the 2016/17 College Goals? 
     Goal 1:  Commitment to strengthen Institutional Effectiveness measures and practices. 
 
     Accomplishments: By working in advancement of the Committee’s and Academic Senate’s mission and 
goals, the Outcomes Committee furthered this goal. 
 
 



     Goal 2:  Increase efficient and effective use of all resources. 
2.1 Technology 

 
      Accomplishments: By working in advancement of the Committee’s and Academic Senate’s mission and 
goals, the Outcomes Committee furthered this goal. 
 
   Goal 3:  Focus on utilizing proven instructional strategies that will foster transferable intellectual skills. 
 
     Accomplishments: By working in advancement of the Committee’s and Academic Senate’s mission and 
goals, the Outcomes Committee furthered this goal.  
 
 
What issues do you foresee your committee working through in the upcoming year? 
Implementation of new Operations Management System and solidifying training and creation of Action Plans. 
 
  Recommendations for change in membership or function: 
Twice the Committee attempted to become a participatory committee with Learning Outcomes a subcommittee 
and Standing Committee of the Senate.  Finally, the Committee got approval from the Senate for an internal 
reorganization that basically attains these goals.  The Committee, however, believe that an Academic Senate 
Standing Committee should not have responsibility for Operational Outcomes, which is not a faculty function. 
 
 



Program Review Committee Chairs/Co-Chairs: Carol 
Eastin and Dr. Meeta Goel 

 

Annual Report 
2016/17 

 
List Committee Goals for 2016/17 

I.  Improve self-study templates 
II.  Update Program Review webpage to reflect current divisions 
III.  Make discipline data more accessible and interactive 
IV.   

Describe accomplishments made to meet your committee goals: 
     I. Templates revised 
     II. Webpage revised 
     III. Dashboards built in Tableau 
     IV.  
What did your committee accomplish to further the College Mission? 
Mission:   
To provide structure, guidance and support to AVC employees as they evaluate their program(s)/area(s) and 
identify goals. 
 
Accomplishments:  Improving the self-study templates and offering data via Tableau enabled programs to 
more efficiently evaluate their programs for quality, outcomes, student success, and value to the community. 

What did your committee accomplish to further the 2016/17 College Goals? 
     Goals 1 and 2:  Commitment to strengthen Institutional Effectiveness measures and Increase efficient and effective use of all 
resources: Technology, Facilities, Human Resources, Business Services 
 
     Accomplishments:  Revised templates and new Tableau dashboards encouraged and facilitated the use of 
data in planning.  This enabled report writers to be more efficient in their self-study work. 
 
     Goals 3 and 4:    Focus on utilizing proven instructional strategies that will foster transferable intellectual skills and advance 

more students to college-level coursework. 
 
     Accomplishments:  Revised templates and new Tableau dashboards were used to identify and address 
achievement gaps and other student success issues.   
   Goal 5:  Align instructional programs to the skills identified by the labor market 
 
   Accomplishments:  Report templates continued to prompt CTE and other programs to evaluate their offerings 
with labor projections.   
 
What issues do you foresee your committee working through in the upcoming year? 
Continue to educate and assist faculty and staff in the use of data and documenting where data based 
decisions have improved outcomes and/or student success. 
  Recommendations for change in membership or function: 
none 



 
 

 



Antelope Valley College 

Tenure Review 

 

To: Dr. Irit Gat, Academic Senate President 

From: Dr. Liette Bohler, Tenure Review Coordinator 

Re: End of Year Report for 2016-17 to the Senate 

 

We hired a total of 10 new faculty members for the 2016-17 academic year. Last year, in 2015-
2016, we only hired 8 new tenure-track faculty members.  

From August 15th through August 17th, 2016, the Senate, together with the Faculty Union, 
organized a 3-day orientation for all the new full-time faculty members. On the first day of the 
orientation, I gave a 2-hour overview of the tenure review process at AVC to our new faculty 
members. At the beginning of the fall semester, I also offered numerous orientation sessions and 
individual orientations for the new tenure-track faculty, the new deans, and new committee 
members on the first-year committees.   

To accommodate our 10 new faculty members, I formed, with the help of the Senate and the 
Deans, 10 new tenure review committees. Each of these new committees elected their committee 
chair.  

In addition to these 10 first-year committees, there are 8 second-year committees, 13 third-year 
committees, and 2 fourth-year committees, which brings the total of tenure review committees to 
33 for 2016-17. 

Because of the college reorganization and because of the 4 new deans that were hired last 
summer, several committees were restructured with a new dean.  

During the course of the fall semester, one faculty member from Automotive in Career Technical 
Education, who was in the tenure-track process, Bruce Shanks, resigned from AVC. At the end 
of last spring semester 2016, another probationary faculty member, who was in Nursing, Mary 
Hults, resigned as well.  

All committees were able to adhere, so far, to the required timelines that I set in agreement with 
the VP of Academic Affairs and the union president at the beginning of each academic year. 
Changes in the work schedules occurred and the appropriate paperwork was filed with me in the 
fall and in the spring.  



The 2 probationary faculty members in their fourth year, Tamira Palmetto Despain and Tim 
Lynskey, were awarded tenure in March. Another faculty member in his second year, James 
Dorn, who had previously been awarded tenure at two different institutions, was awarded early 
tenure.   

We are currently interviewing candidates for 12 new tenure-track positions and will be in need of 
at least 12 senate representatives for the next academic year.   

I expect the total number of tenure review committees for 2017-2018 to be 42.   

 

  

 

 



  
 

BU 17-01 
BULLETIN: IDENTIFICATION OF SINGLE-USER TOILET 
FACILITIES AS ALL-GENDER 
PURPOSE: The Division of the State Architect (DSA) provides this bulletin for reference 
by schools, community colleges, and other entities under its jurisdiction, as an aid in 
complying with new state law requirements.  Subject to approval by the local enforcing 
agency, this bulletin is also provided for reference by other interested parties as an aid 
in complying with new state law requirements. 
 
BACKGROUND: Assembly Bill 1732 (Ting, Chapter 818, Statutes of 2016) was signed 
into law on September 29, 2016, to create Health and Safety Code Section 118600, 
relating to the identification of single-user toilet facilities as all-gender toilet facilities.  
 
Health and Safety Code Section 118600 requires: 
(a) All single-user toilet facilities in any business establishment, place of public 
accommodation, or state or local government agency shall be identified as all-gender 
toilet facilities by signage that complies with Title 24 of the California Code of 
Regulations, and designated for use by no more than one occupant at a time or for 
family or assisted use. 
(b) During any inspection of a business or a place of public accommodation by an 
inspector, building official, or other local official responsible for code enforcement, the 
inspector or official may inspect for compliance with this section. 
(c) For the purposes of this section, “single-user toilet facility” means a toilet facility with 
no more than one water closet and one urinal with a locking mechanism controlled by 
the user. 
(d) This section shall become operative on March 1, 2017. 
 
DISCUSSION: The following directive is provided for clarity, to address identification of 
single-user toilet facilities as all-gender, in compliance with the accessibility provisions 
of California Building Code (CBC) Chapter 11B. It is important to note that the 
clarification provided herein is not the result of a change in accessibility regulations, and 
is in accordance with existing accessibility requirements for symbols at entrances for 
toilet facilities, and wall-mounted designation signs if provided, as is already expressed 
in both the 2013 CBC and 2016 CBC. 
1. The provisions of CBC Chapter 11B require that a sanitary facility that is not 
specifically identified as for "men" or "women" (referred to in Chapter 11B as a “unisex” 
facility) have a geometric symbol on the door that is an equilateral triangle 
superimposed onto a circle. The "unisex" symbol is the only specific indicator required 
to be provided by Chapter 11B for a toilet facility that is available for use by all 

BU 17-01 (iss 01-19-17)  Page 1 of 4 
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT      DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES        STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
 

anna
Highlight

anna
Highlight

julie
Highlight



DSA BULLETIN BU 17-01 

IDENTIFICATION OF SINGLE-USER TOILET FACILITIES AS ALL-GENDER 
 
individuals. No pictogram, text, or braille is required on the symbol. (See attachment, 
Exhibit A.) 

 
2. CBC Chapter 11B does not require a wall-mounted designation sign identifying a 
permanent room or space to be provided for a toilet facility. CBC Chapter 11B 
provisions for designation signs are conditional and the technical requirements apply 
only when a designation sign is provided.  
2.1  According to CBC Chapter 11B, where a toilet facility is identified with a 

designation sign adjacent to the door, the sign is required to comply with the 
technical requirements for visual characters, raised characters, braille, and must 
also comply with other accessibility requirements for mounting height, clear floor 
space, and proximity to the door/entrance of the room. A pictogram is not 
required to be provided; however, where a facility owner elects to identify a toilet 
facility with a pictogram, a text descriptor consisting of visual characters, raised 
characters, and braille is required to accompany the pictogram.  

 
2.2 DSA does not have the authority to specify designation sign text, nor does DSA 

have the authority to regulate the image for a pictogram that is provided on a 
designation sign. The image of the pictogram and text descriptor is left to the 
discretion of the facility owner/operator. (See attachment, Exhibit B.)  

 
The CBC requirements for use and application of designation signs are consistent with 
the 2010 Americans with Disabilities Act Standards (2010 ADAS).  
 
 
  

BU 17-01 (iss 01-19-17)  Page 2 of 4 
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT      DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES        STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
 



DSA BULLETIN BU 17-01 

IDENTIFICATION OF SINGLE-USER TOILET FACILITIES AS ALL-GENDER 
 
The following information pertains to projects within DSA’s enforcement 
jurisdiction, namely schools, community colleges, and state-funded facilities: 

 
3. Addressing the enforcement provisions of the statute: HSC §118600 states: 
"an inspector, building official, or other local official responsible for code enforcement, 
the inspector or official may inspect for compliance." For projects within DSA 
enforcement jurisdiction, DSA provides the following guidelines for enforcement: 

 
3.1 Projects under plan review as of March 1, 2017: If a project is in plan review, 

DSA access staff will review that all single-user toilet facilities in new 
construction, or those undergoing alteration that are part of the project, have the 
required "unisex" symbols on the door (see attachment, Exhibit A), and indicate 
that the symbol be provided without text, braille, or use of a pictogram. If the 
designer has indicated a wall-mounted designation sign will be provided at the 
single-user toilet facility, DSA will require the sign to be specified in the 
construction documents, and to be indicated as a designation sign with raised 
text, corresponding braille, and no pictogram (see attachment, Exhibit B).  
 

3.2 Single-user toilet facilities in projects under construction, and existing 
single-user toilet facilities requiring a change of identification symbols:  In 
accordance with the guidelines provided herein, implementation of the statute for 
existing single-user toilet facilities and for single-user toilet facilities in projects 
under construction is to be effected by the school district. The effective date for 
compliance is March 1, 2017. When changing identification symbols of existing 
single-user toilet facilities from gender-specific to all-gender, DSA advises 
against providing a pictogram to represent an all-gender image on a designation 
sign or unisex symbol.  The pictogram might be perceived as inappropriate, and 
in fact, DSA reminds facility owners that a pictogram is not required.  

BU 17-01 (iss 01-19-17)  Page 3 of 4 
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT      DEPARTMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES        STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
 

julie
Highlight



DSA BULLETIN BU 17-01 

IDENTIFICATION OF SINGLE-USER TOILET FACILITIES AS ALL-GENDER 
 

ATTACHMENT 
 

IDENTIFICATION OF ALL GENDER SINGLE-USER TOILET FACILITIES 
Compliant with the California Building Code (CBC) Chapter 11B 

 
EXHIBIT A - Door Symbol (required by the CBC) 
 
This image represents the door symbol that is required by CBC 11B-216.8 to identify an 
all-gender/unisex single-user toilet facility. The symbol must comply with the 
requirements of CBC 11B-703.7.2.6.3. No pictogram, text, or braille is required on the 
symbol. 
 

 
 
EXHIBIT B - Designation sign on wall  
 
Designation signs are not required to be provided by the CBC or the 2010 ADAS. If 
provided, a designation sign adjacent to the door must comply with the scoping 
requirements of CBC 11B-216.2, and the technical requirements for raised characters 
(CBC 11B-703.2), braille (CBC 11B-703.3), visual characters (CBC 11B-703.5), and 
requirements for installation height and location (CBC 11B-703.4). No pictogram is 
required. The following signs illustrate acceptable examples for designation sign text: 
 
          

             
        

Note: Braille translation not verified by DSA.  

BU 17-01 (iss 01-19-17) Page 4 of 4 
DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT    TMENT OF GENERAL SERVICES        STAT OF CALIFORNIA 
 

 
   DEPAR E 


	5-18-17  Senate Agenda
	5-18-17  Senate Minutes
	5-18-17 Senate Roll-Voting
	Roll Sheet

	5-18-17 Senate Accreditation Report
	5-18-17 Senate - PresTerm-GHaller
	5-18-17 Senate - PresTermII-GHaller
	5-18-17 Senate BP 6307 Debt Issuance and Mgmnt
	5-18-17 Senate AP 6307 Debt Issuance and Mgmnt
	5-18-17 Senate AVC DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY & IMPLEMENTING PROCEDURES
	5-18-17 Senate Exec -2EOJHarper
	5-18-17 APP Senate Communication
	ANTELOPE VALLEY COLLEGE
	Academic Affairs Office

	5-18-17 Senate APP2-Minimum Qual BUS 201 Memo 5.9.17
	ANTELOPE VALLEY COLLEGE
	Academic Affairs Office

	5-18-17 Senate APP3-DistanceEd Form
	16-17 Senate  Annual APandP
	16-17 Senate Annual Accreditation
	16-17 Senate Annual DETC
	16-17 Senate Annual FPD
	16-17 Senate Annual Honors
	16-17 Senate Annual Outcomes
	16-17 Senate Annual Program Review
	5-18-16 Senate Annual Tenure Review
	5-18-17 Senate DSA Bulletin All-Gender Toilet Facilities



